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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.

Head Office: Registered Office:
Amin Court (3¢ Floor) Saydana, K.B Bazar, Gazipur Sadar,
62-63 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka- 1000. Gazipur-1704.

Notice of the 40th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting of Standard Ceramic Industries Ltd. will be held on
Thursday, December 26, 2024 at 10:30 A.M. (Dhaka Time) through Hybrid System in combination of physical
presence (venue:Institution of Diploma Engineers, Bangladesh (IDEB)-Social Garden: Room No-502 (5t Floor):160/A-
Kakrail VIP Road, Dhaka-1000) and by using Digital platform through link https://standardceramic.bdvirtualagm.com
to transact the following business:

AGENDA
1. To confirm the proceedings of the 39th Annual General Meeting held on December 30, 2023.
2. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on June 30, 2024 together
with reports of the Auditors and the Directors thereon.
To elect Directors in place of those retiring by rotation.
To appoint statutory auditors of the company for the year 2024-25 and to fix their remuneration
To appoint Corporate Governance Auditors of the company for the year 2024-25 and to fix their remuneration.
To approve the re-appointment of Independent Director.
To transact any other business which may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting with the permission of the Chair

By order of the Board of Directors

Dated: December 01, 2024
Mgﬁ"‘

(Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan)
Company Secretary.

Notes:

a) December 05, 2024, is the Record Date. Shareholder whose names will appear in the Members Register of the company
or in the Depository Register on Record Date will be eligible to attend the Annual General Meeting.

b). The 40" AGM of the Company shall have been conducted through Hybrid System in line with the Order No.
BSEC/ICAD/SRIC/2024/318/09, dt. 16.01.2024 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) Details login
process for the meeting will be available in the Company’s website at www.standardceramic.net and the Link will be
mailed to the respective shareholders email address available with the Registers.

¢). A shareholder eligible to attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is entitied to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote on
hisiher behalf Hybrid System. Forms of Proxy duly filled, signed & stamped must be sent to the Share Department of the
Company at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

d) No gift or benefit in cash or kind shall be paid to the shareholders of the company at the Annual General Meeting as per
BSEC notification.
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STATISTICAL PERFORMANCE

Five Years Key Financial Statistics

As at 30 June Tk./000

ltems 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Fixed Assets 136,917 146,853 160,615 173,841 178,980
Net Current assets (375,104) | (223,253) (90,532) (81,979) | (73,383)
Total Assets (238,187) | (76,400) 70,083 91,862 105,597
Paid-up-Capital 64,607 64,607 64,607 64,607 64,607
Share Premium 14,650 14,650 14,650 14,650 14,650
Retained Earnings (349,961) | (201,232) (62,461) (42,655) | (44,178)
Tax Holiday Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
General Reserve 615 615 615 615 1,064
Capital reserve 25,592 25,592 25,592 25,592 25,592
Total equity (244,497) | (95,768) 43,003 62,809 61,735
Deferred Tax Liabilities 6,310 12,453 14,051 14,249 14,283
Long Term Loan 0 15,874 13,029 14,804 29,579
IShareholders' equity and Deferred Tax & (238,187) | (67,441) 70,083 91,862 105,597
ong Term Loan .
Current Assets 110,024 177,708 157,482 138,253 | 111,220
Current Liabilities 485,128 400,961 248,014 220,232 | 184,603
Net Asset Value (NAV) per Share Tk. (37.84) (14.82) 6.66 9.72 9.56
Net Operating Cash Flow per share(NOCFPS) (8.94) (9.10) (0.94) 1.20 0.56
ltems 2023-24 | 2022-23 | 202122 | 202021 | 2019-20
Revenue 96,296 244,470 311,320 325,336 | 233,738
Less Cost of goods sold Iltems (192,339) | (310,477) | (270,034) | (261,102) | (217,530)
Gross profit (96,042) (66,007) 41,286 64,234 16,208
Less: Administrative and Selling expenses (34,994) (47,831) (47,422) (50,162) | (47,871)
Interest charges (23,330) (11,407) (11,439) (9,742) (5,135)
Other income 73 2,147 22 125 123
Written off 0 0 (100) 0 0
(58,251) (57,091) (58,939) (59,779) | (52,883)
Net Profit/(Loss) (154,294) | (123,098) | (17,654) 4,455 (36,675)
Contribution of WPPF 0 0 0 (223) -
(154,294) | (123,098) | (17,654) 4,232 (36,675)
Less: Provision for Income Tax & Deferred Tax 5,564 132 (1,670) (2,709) (4,147)
Net profit/(Loss) (148,729) | (122,966) | (19,324) 1,523 (40,822)
Earnings per share (EPS) Tk. (23.02) (19.03) (2.99) 0.24 (6.32)
1% (for
Cash Dividend Nil Nil Nil 1% only Shzl::::ﬁld
ers only
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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
Amin Court (3 Floor), 62-63, Motijheel C/A,
Dhaka- 1000, Bangladesh.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT AT THE
40TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Dear Shareholders,

We, on behalf of the Board of Directors, feel privileged to welcome you to the 40th Annual General Meeting of your
company and have the pleasure in presenting before you the Annual Report together with Annual audited financial
statements for the financial year ended on 30th June 2024.

General Economics & Economic condition:

We deeply regret to inform you that we have had the worst financial year in our history. The spiralling cost of
operations and the Banking channel crisis has crippled our company. Our company has suffered tremendously
through the COVID years. Those years saw production levels drop significantly as social distancing resulted in
extreme low turnouts in the factory. We were faced with the difficulty of accepting high fixed costs even with low
production.

Like most people, we could not also foresee these troubled times and hence were not able to cope with the
challenges. The world has gone into a recession following the COVID era & the Ukraine war that followed (Covid)
increased prices of all products beyond expectation — not a single sector has been spared. Fuel costs increased to
around 50% and Taka lost a lot of value against the Dollar. The 2022 turmoil of the Banking sector did not surface
for many months.

Then came the biggest shock of all — in February 2023 the government increased the price of our main raw
material (the Natural Gas) by 150% which pushed up the price of everything all over again including power. Foreign
Exchange reserves dropped to such a level that it was difficult to get LCs issued. Bank margin was received in
some loans 100% of total L/C value. It was also tough to raise funds to counter the crisis the company was faced
with which ultimately led to the temporary closure of the factory in the early part of 2024.

Even with the best intentions and stern efforts of the management and people behind the company could not meet
the challenges which we deeply regret.

Industry outlook
Directors are trying hard to re-open the factory but due to economic condition, high Gas price, high raw materials
cost; liquidity crisis and low product demand have become the main constraint to achieving the objective.

Possible future development
Possible future development is depending on change of economic condition and Govt. policy which is beyond the
control of Management.

Cost Reduction
Directors are thinking to set up fuel efficient kiln. So, production cost will decrease subject to utilization of maximum
capacity which will depend on improvement of general economic situation.

Segment-wise or product-wise performance
No segmental reporting is applicable for the company as the Company operates in a single industry segment and it
is very difficult to separate Product wise performance reporting.
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Risks and concerns

Cumulative effect of COVID 19, Russia & Ukraine war, high Gas price , high cost of raw materials and low demand
of products have increased the business Risk in almost all Sectors of business within/outside the country. Failure to
supply of energy (Electricity & Gas) is also constraint

(a)Interest Rate Risk
The rate of interest is increased compared to the previous year but risk of interest remains if there is upward
changed in the interest rate.

(b) Exchange rate risk
Company always adjusts exchange risk for imported raw materials through increasing products price but in the
present economic scenario, price increase may not be possible.

(c)Market Risk

The company is continuously upgrading its quality to minimize the market risks but purchasing power of customers
has decreased.

(d) Operational Risk (Non-availabilities of Materials /Mechanical Failure of Equipments)
The Company has its scientific inventory management system and equipped with power backup which reduces
operational risks. Utilization of plant capacity will depend on improvement of market condition.

(e) Trade Policy risk

Trade policy risk refers to the increase competition in the market due to change of trade policy. Increase of duty on
imported raw-materials and decrease of duty on imported finished goods will increase risks The Company
continuously carries out research and development activities according to the customer choice which reduces
industry risk.

(f)Threat to sustainability and negative impact on environment

There is no foreseeable sustainability threat, though the Ratio between Current Assets & Current Liabilities has
distorted due to cumulative effect of COVID 19, Russia & Ukraine war, Dollar rate fluctuation and irregular supply
and high rate of Gas & electricity. If the above reasons is continues, so, there is threat to sustainability and
negative impact on environment.

State of Company's Affairs (Analysis of Cost of goods sold, Gross profit margin, Net profit margin)
Turnover amounted to Taka 96.30 million in the year 2023-2024 as against taka 244.47 million in the year 2022-
2023. This year cost of goods sold 192.33 Taka million as against 310.477 million in the year 2022-2023. The
gross(/Loss) profit for the year was Taka (96.042) million as against Taka (66.00 )million of the previous year.

Figure in Thousand ('000) Tk.

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax etc. (154,294) (123,098)
Less: Provision for tax etc. (578) (1,467)
Add: Deferred Tax (Exps)/Income 6,142 1,598
Net Profit /(Loss ) after Tax etc. (148,729) (122,967)
Add;Prior years adjustment 0 (15,805)
Less: Retained Earnings)/Accumulated Profit / (Loss) b/f (201,232) (62,460)
Dividend / Proposed Dividend (From General reserve) 0 0
Accumulated Retained Earning as on 30.06.2024 (349,961) (201,232)
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Contribution to National Exchequer:
Your company contributed a total amount of Taka 13.99 million to the National Exchequer in the form of Custom
duty, AIT, VAT, except gas, electricity bill etc, during the year under report.

Continuity of Extra-Ordinary Gain or Loss:
There was no extra- ordinary gain or loss during the year under report.

Related party transaction
Company was not connected to related party transactions except note no-42.

Reply to the qualified remarks of the Audit report

1. Subject to mitigation of constrains to restart the production, the company may be consider as a going concern.
The mitigation of constrains is a policy of the government to save the industry shut down for indefinite period.
Company may sale part of the unused vacant land of fixed assets to pay off the current liabilities not meet up by
current assets.

2. The default loan may be regularized from the surplus of the fund to be generated from sale of unused land and
improvement of capacity utilization which depend on market condition domestically and internationally.

3. The solution of the problem is dependent on the whole economic condition of the country which is beyond
control of the management.

4. Work - In — Progress (inventory):
Commercial production of the company started in 1993.Damage, obsolete and trial production loss were not
written off, hence included in the Work - In — Progress (inventory). No approval to write off the damage stock
was taken from VAT authority which was hazardous.

5. Information relating to fixed assets are preserved in the software. The auditor though verified the software and
physically visited the factory but did not compare the recorded fixed assets in the software with those fixed
assets physically available in the factory.

6. This issue will also be address in the next year .

7. Bank Statement:
We have provided all bank statements to the auditors for balance confirmation.

8. Unclaimed Dividend
The matter of extension of time is pending which is dependent on availability of fund by mitigation of constrains
of improving the utilization of production capacity.

Emphasis of Metter:

1. VAT Return-
We could not submit VAT return due to system of on line VAT return submission which does not allow without
deposit of payable amount.

3. Provident fund
The Company has taken loan from Provident Fund against which 8% interest being paid. This has been done to
minimize borrowing cost & formalities required to obtained fund from alternative source. The Board of Trustees
of Provident Fund has approved Loan from Provident Fund to the Company which is shown as Current Liability.

Dividend
The Company has a total accumulated loss of taka 349.961 million which lowered our reserve position. In this
situation, the Board of Directors has recommended no dividend of this year.
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Utilization of Proceeds from Public Issue, right issue and through any others instruments

The Company did not raise share capital through Public Issue, right issue and through any other instruments during
the year 2023-2024 . However, the company raised its capital in 1996. The proceeds of the issue have been utilized
in repaying Long Term Loan.

Significant variance between Quarterly Financial performances and Annual financial statements

The variances between Quarterly Financial performances and Annual financial statements were due to cumulative
negative effect of COVID 19 and Russia & Ukraine war, high cost of Gas price, high cost of raw materials and low
demand of products and fixed cost burden due to factory closure.

Remuneration of Directors and Independent Director

Remuneration of the Executive Directors (Managing Director & Operative Director) have been disclosed in the accounts
note no.25. On the other hand, Chairman, non-Executive Directors & Independent Directors did not receive any
remuneration except meeting fees.

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement :
Pur?uanthto BSEC notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated: 03 June, 2018 the Directors
confirm that;

The Company has complied the requirements of Corporate Governance as required by the Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Accordingly, the Directors are pleased to confirm the following:

* The Financial Statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Act 1994, Financial Reporting Act, 2015 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules 2020. These
statg{ments present fairly the Company's state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flow and changes in
equity.

* Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

* Appropriate Accounting Policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements and the
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

* The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IAS/IFRS as applicable in Bangladesh.

* The system of internal control is sound and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

* There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern if the constrains
remove

* The key operating and financial data for the last five years is disclosed in Page no. 5.

* No Bonus share or stock dividend has been declared as interim dividend.

* The majority shareholders did not oppress any minority shareholders. The interest of minority shareholders was
protected as required by Companies Act.

Significant deviation in operating results compared to previous year
Significant deviation in operating results compared to previous year has been disclosed respective notes in the
accounts. (note no. 38, 39, 40 &43)

Board Meetings and Attendance :
The Board of Directors consisted of 8 members and during the year six Board meetings were held.
The attendance record of the Directors is as follows:

SI# | Name of the Directors Position Meeting
attended

01. | Mr. Lutfur Rahman Chairman 6

02. | Mr. Helal Uddin Ahmed Managing Director 6

03. | Mr. Nasir Uddin Ahmed Director 4

04. | Mr. Enamul Magsud Director 5

05. | Mr. AK.M. Alamgir Khan Director 6

06. | Mrs. Anwarun Nehar Director 5

07. | Mr. Aftab Uddin Ahmed, FCA Independent Director 4

08 | Mr Mizanur Rahman, FCA Independent Director 3

The Directors not attending the meetings were granted leave of absence
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Subsidiary Company
The Company has no subsidiary company.

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
The position of the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer stand separated.

Duties of CEO and CFO
The provision of BSEC regulations has been complied.

Shareholding Structure:
The pattern of shareholding is as follows:

Sl # | Name wise details Number of Shares held
01. | Mr Lutfur Rahman, Chairman 3,73,880
02. | Mr. Helal Uddin Ahmed, Managing Director 3,73,880
03. | Mr Nasir Uddin Ahmed, Director 3,73,880
04. | Mr. Enamul Magsud, Director 2,06,892
05. | Mr. A K.M Alamgir Khan, Director 337,988
06. | Mrs. Anwarun Nehar , Director 129,680
07. | Mr. Aftab Uddin Ahmed, FCA, (Independent Director) 0

08 Mr. AKM Mizanur Rahman, FCA, (Independent Director) 0
09. | Mr. Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan, Company Secretary. 0

10. | Mr. Abdur Rahim, Chief Financial Officer. 0

11. | Mr. Serajul Islam, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance. 0

Executives:

12 Mr. S.M Mamun Kabir, General Manager. 0

13 Mr. Md. Abu Taher, Senior Manager (Import). 0

14 Mr. Hedayet, Manager Admin 0

15 Mr Mustafizur Rahman ,Dy. Manager (Share) 0

16 Mir Makhon Ali, Asstt. Manager (Accounts) 0

Retirement of Directors and their Re-election :

Mr. Lutfur Rahman (2) Mrs. Anwarun Nehar, Directors of the company who retired by rotation as per Article 44 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, offered themselves for re-appointment and being eligible may be re-
appointment.

Appointment of Independent Director :

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on January 20, 2024 unanimously re-appointed Md. Aftab Uddin
Ahmed, FCA as Independent Director of the company for next 3 years term from 1st February, 2024. The
appointment is placed before the 40t Annual General Meeting for approval by the shareholders.

Brief resume of Directors:

A) Mr. Lutfur Rahman- Chairman.

Mr. Lutfur Rahman is an honors graduate of Dhaka University and started his career with Peoples ceramic
Industries Ltd (PCI Ltd.) in the 80’s.He was also involved with Standard Ceramic Industries Ltd. in the early year of
the Company. Mr. Rahman is the Managing Director of Peoples Ceramic Industries Ltd. was general Secretary of
Bangladesh Ceramic Wares Manufacturers’ Association (BCWMA), life member of IBA of Dhaka University &
AQTS, Japan.

B) Helal Uddin Ahmed- Managing Director

Mr. Helal Uddin Ahmed is a graduate from BUET in Mechanical Engineering. He is a Director of the company. He
is also a director of Peoples Ceramic Industries Ltd. He has been engaged in ceramic line since 1987. He has also
gathered vast experience in ceramic production and quality. In addition to his business, he is a member of IEB,
BUET-87 Club, Association of BUET Alumni and the International Association of Lions Club. Mr. Helal is also
associated with some social organizations

C) Mr. Nasir Uddin Ahmed - Director.

Mr. Nasir Uddin Ahmed, a commerce graduate, is the Director of the company. He started his career in 1985 as
management executive (now operative director) in Peoples Ceramic Industries Ltd., pioneer of ceramic sector in
the country. He has acquired vast knowledge in technical and manufacturing during his service life and able to hold
key position in the same field. He has got long 36 years experience as ceramic business expert. Long acquiring
experience including various training from abroad like AOTS, Japan in respect of industrial concerns.
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D) Mr. Enamul Magsud —Director.

Mr. Enamul Magsud is a graduate from BUET in Mechanical Engineering. He is a Shareholder and Operative
Director of the company. He is also a director of Peoples Ceramic Industries Ltd. He has been working in ceramic
sector since 1989. He has also gathered vast experience in ceramic production and quality. In addition to his
business, he is a member of IEB, BUET-88 Club. Mr. Magsud is also associated with some social organizations.

E) Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan- Director.

Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan is an M.B.A from IBA, DU. He is the director of the company. He was one of the earliest
entries from the private sector in CNG through Delta CNG. Mr. Khan worked for 3 years as Consultant in
Heidelberg Cement. He is a registered Professional Fellow with the US State Department. Mr. Khan also a life
member of Dhaka Club, MBA Club etc.

F) Mrs. Anwarun Nehar- Director

Mrs. Anwarun Nehar was born in a respectable Muslim family in 1954. She is the daughter of Al-haj Ansar Uddin
Ahmed, founder Chairman and Managing Director, Standard Ceramic Ind. Ltd. She is the shareholder of Peoples
Ceramic Ind. Ltd. Mrs. Anwarun Nehar has completed B.Sc, B.Ed. She is also associated with some social
organizations.

G) Md. Aftab Uddin Ahmed, FCA

Md. Aftab Uddin Ahmed was born in 1963 in a respectable Muslim family at Chandpur in Cumilla. He is the son of
Md. Habibur Rahman & Mrs. Mahmuda Khatun. He obtained Post Graduated Degree and also qualified Chartered
Accountancy in 2001. He is the Fellow Member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB),
Enrolment no. 804. He is presently the independent auditor & Senior Partner of AZIZ HALIM KHAIR
CHOUDHURY, Chartered Accountants. He is in practice in the last 20 years. Mr. Aftab Uddin is associated with
some social organisations.

H) Mr A.K Mizanur Rahman, FCA- Independent Director

Mr. A.K Mizanur Rahman, FCA is Managing Partner of Shafiq Mizan Rahman & Augustine, Chartered Accountants
and Official Receiver, People's Republic of Bangladesh. He qualified as Chartered Accountant from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) in the year 1983. Mr. Rahman is a life Member of Bangladesh Red
Crescent Society, Diabetic Association of Bangladesh, Bangladesh Society of Hypertension, Bangladesh Lions
Foundation and Member of Dhaka Chamber of Commerce and Industry (DCCI), Japan-Bangladesh Chamber of
Commerce & Industry. He attended various seminar and conference at home & abroad. He was the Chairman of
Dhaka Regional Council of the ICAB in the year 1997 and Past President of Lions Club of Dhaka Shahabagh and
OISCA International Japan. He was also a Member of Standing Committee of ICAB, DCCI and International
Director, OISCA International, Japan and Director, Sadharan Bima Corporation and Beach Hatchery Ltd.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ON COMPANY’S POSITION AND OPERATION
Refer to Annexure -D Page no-24

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Refer to Annexure- E Page no-25

MD & CFQO'S Declaration on Financial Statements
Refer to Annexure- A Page no-13

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
Refer to Annexure B Page no-14.

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration the Nomination committee (NRC)
NRC committee consisting of the following members.

Particulars Position in the committee
1. Mr. Mizanur Rahman, FCA, Independent Director. Chairman
2. Mrs. Anwarun Nehar, Director. Member
3. Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan, Director. Member
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One Meeting was held during the year, the committee will play its role as per guide line of BSEC. No top level
executive was appointed.

NRC.

Refer to annexure-F, Page # 27.

Corporate Governance Compliance Report:

In accordance with the requirement of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, "Corporate
Governance Compliance Report" is annexed (Annexure —C).

Appointment of Auditors :

Presently M/s. ARTISAN, Chartered Accountants, Sonargaon Terrace (2" Floor), House no-52,Road no-13/C,
Block no-E, Banani, Dhaka-1213 bangladesh is the auditor of the Company whose period of appointment will
expire on 40th AGM as well as they will fulfill two years period. They have offered themselves for re-appointment
as auditors of the Company for the year 2024-25. Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommended that M/s.
ARTISAN, Chartered Accountants, be re-appointed as Auditors for the year 2024-2025 subject to the approval of
the Shareholders in the AGM with Tk 225,000/= (Taka.Two lakh twenty five thousand) only as their remuneration
for audit works only.

Appointment of Corporate Goverance Auditors

Presently M/s. M Ahmed & Co , Chartered Accountants, Shakila’s Dream, House no-12-13,(Ground Floor) Suit #
103, Road # 5, Block# A Kaderabad Housing Socity,Mohammadpur, Dhaka-1207 Bangladesh is the Corporate
Governance auditors of the Company whose period of appointment will expire on 40th AGM. They offered
themselves for re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the year 2024-25. Accordingly, the Board of
Directors recommended that M/s. M Ahmed & Co, Chartered Accountants, be appointed as Corporate Governance
Auditors for the financial year 2024-2025 subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the AGM.

Acknowledgement :

We, on behalf of the Board of Directors of the company, express our sincere gratitude and thanks to all the
respected Shareholders, Investors, Banks, Financial Institutions, Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission,
Stock Exchanges, CDBL, ICB, Government Agencies, News & Press Media, Suppliers, Customers and employees
of the company for their continued support & co-operation.

Conclusion :

Finally, we, on behalf of the Board of Directors express our deep appreciation to all workers, Staff and Officers,
both in the Head Office and Factory for their dedicated hard work rendered during the year and hope that they will
continue to maintain spirit of team work in the coming years for the continued growth of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 16 November, 2024 (Enamul Magsud) (Helal Uddin Ahmed)
Place: Dhaka Director Managing Director
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Annexure- A
MD & CFO'S Declaration on Financial Statements

Date16 November, 2024

The Board of Directors

Standard Ceramic Industries Limited
62-63 Motijheel C/A

Dhaka-1000.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2024.

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to Condition No. 1 (5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission's Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/
Admin/80, dated 03 June 2018 under Section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare
that:

(1) The Financial Statements of Standard Ceramic Industries Ltd. for the year ended on 30 June 2024 have been prepared in
compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
applicable n the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in order
for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company's state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly presented in
its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and
maintenance of accounting records;

5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies and
procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is appropriate and
there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that -
(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2024 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

(@) These statements do not contain any mater ally untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading

(b) These statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards and applicable laws

(i)  There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, llegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the Company's Board of Directors or its members

— Sincerely yours
f;;;lgt\(,@\ -

(Helal Uddin Ahmed) (Md. Abdur Rahim)
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure- B

&Y, TR 98 (JR Phone: Mob: 01729270197 Shakila's Dream, House no-12-13,

BTG T 01576-483178 (Ground Floor) Suit# 103, Road #5,

M. AHMED & Co. Blocks# A Kaderabad Housing,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  E-Mail: mahmed co.1961@yahoo.com  Mohammadpur, Dhaka-1207.
akmojumder@yahoo.com

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Report to the Shareholders of Standard Ceramic Industries Limited on compliance on the Corporate Governance Code.

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Standard Ceramic Industries Limited for the
year ended 30" June, 2024. This Code relates to the Notification No.

BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated: 3rd June, 2018 BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/66/PRD/148-dated 16 October
2023 and BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/76/PRD/151-dated 04 April 2024 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination was limited t to
the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance
Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered
Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any conditions of this Corporate
Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after due Scrutiny and
verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the- Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in the above mentioned
Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by
the institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code;

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

o i e B

d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

—
Place; Dhaka-1207 Md. Abul Kashem Mojumder, FCA
Dated: November 16, 2024. Managing Partner

M. Ahmed & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure- C

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/ 2006-158/ 207/
Admin/80, dated 03 June, 2018, No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/76/PRD/151, Date: 4 April, 2024 and No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/66/PRD/148, Date: 16 October 2023 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange
Ordinance, 1969

(Report under Condition No. 9.00)

Condition
No.

Title

Compliance status

(v

has been put

the appmopriate
column)

Complied

Not
complie

Board of Directors(BoD)

Size of the Board of Directors

v

The total number of members of a company's Board of Directors (hereinafter
referred to as "Board") shall not to be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

v

The Boards of Directors
is comprised of 8
Directors including 02

Independent Directors

Independent Directors

At least 2(two) directors or one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the
company's Board, whichever is higher, shall be independent directors; any fraction
shall be considered to the next integer or whole number for calculating number of

independent director(s);” "Provided that the Board shall appoint at least 1(one)
female independent director in the Board of Directors of the company"

Selection of Female
independent director-
Under Process.

Who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than one percent
(1%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the company;

Who is not a sponsor of the company and is not connected with the company's
any sponsor or director or nominated director or shareholder of the company of
any of its associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and parents or holding entities
who holds one percent (1%) or more shares of the total paid-up shares of the
company on the basis of family relationship and his or her family members also
shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company:

Who has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding 2 (two)
financial years;

Who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or therwise,with the
company or its subsidiary or associated companies;

Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate) holder,
director, or officer of any stock exchange;

Who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent direct or officer of any
member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital market;

Who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive during
the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company's statutory audit firm on
audit firm engaged in internal audit services or audit firm conducting special audit
or professional certifying compliance of this Code;

N N NN S

Who is not an independent director in more than 5 (five) listed companies;

who has not been reported as a defaulter in the latest Credit Information Bureau
(CIB) report of Bangladesh Bank for nonpayment of any loan or advance or
obligation to a bank or a financial institution; and”

NS

1(2) (b))

Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude.

12)(c)

The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the board of directors and
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM). “Provided
that the Board shall appoint the independent director, subject to prior consent of the
Commission, after due consideration of recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the company;”

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than
90(ninety) days.

The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of

3(three) years, which may be extended for 1(one) term only.
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Qualification of Independent Director

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who
is able to ensure compliance with financial, regulatory and corporate laws
and can make meaning full contribution to business.

ANAN

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted company
having minimum paid-up capital of Tk.100.00 million or any listed company or a
member of any national or international chamber of commerce or registered
business association; or"

NA

Corporate Leader who is or was a top-level executive not lower than Chief
Executive officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or Chief
Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a candidate with
equivalent position of an unlisted company having minimum paid up capital of Tk.
100.00 million or of a listed company;

NA

1(3) (o)

Former or existing official of government or statutory or autonomous

or regulatory body in the position not below 5th Grade of the national

pay scale, who has at least educational background of bachelor degree

in economics or commerce or business or Law; Provided that in case of
appointment of existing official as independent director, it requires clearance from
the organization where he or she is in service; or”

NA

University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or
Commerce or Business Studies or Law;

NA

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High
Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or
Cost and Mana?ement Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or
Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or Chartered

Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification;

The independent director(s) shall have at least 10 (ten) years of
experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b)

In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may be relaxed
subject to prior approval of the Commission.

NA

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chie

f Executive

The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director
(MD) and for Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the company shall be filled
bv different individuals;

v

Officer

The Managing Director (MD) andfor Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of a
listed company shall not hold the same position in another listed company:

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-
executive directors of the company;

The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the
Chairperson and the Managing Director and/ or Chief Executive officer;

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members
may elect one of themselves from non-executive directors as chairperson
for that particular Board's meeting; the reason of absence of the regular

Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

NN NS

The Directors Report to the Shareholders

An industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry.

The Segment-wise or product-wise performance;

Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to
sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;

Not Possible

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit
Margin, where applicable;

A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their
impliacations (qain or 0ss);

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a statement
showing amount, nature of related party, nature of fransactions and basis

NN NN NS

of transactions of all related party transactions;
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1(5)(vii) | A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights N/A
issues andLor through any other instruments;
1(5)(viii) | An explanation if the finanCial results deteriorate after the company goes N/A
for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO). Rights
Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc;
1(5)(ix) | An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between Quarterly v
Financial Performance and Annual Financial Statements;
1(5)(x) | statement of remuneraton paid to the directors including v
independent directors;
1(5)(xi) | A statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of v
the issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity;
1(5)ii) A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have v
been maintained;
1(5)(xiii) | A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently v
applied in preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;
1(5)xiv) | A statement that International Accounting Standards {IAS)or International e
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Ban dgladesh have
been followed in preparation of the financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately
1(5)(xv) | A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has v
heen effectively implemented and manitored:
1(5)(xvi) | A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive v
actions by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either
dlrp(‘tlv or mdlrpr‘ﬂv and have pffpr‘hvp means of redress;
1(5)(vi) | A statement that there is no Significant doubt upon the issuer company's v
ability to continue as going concern, if the issuer company is not
considered to be a going
concern, the fact ith reasons there of shall be disclosed;
1(5)(vi) | An explanation that significant deviations from the last year's operating e
risults of the i.sseier company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof
S ed:
1(5)(xix) | A statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 v
(five) years shall be summarized;
1(5)(0) | An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared v
dividend (cash or stack) for the vear;
1(5)(xxi) | Board's statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has v
heen or shall be declared as interim dl\ndpnd
1(5)(0i) | The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance v
hv each director;
1 (5)(xxiii) | A'Teporton the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of v
shares (along with name-wise details where stated below) held by
1(5)(0i)a) | Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties NA
(name -wise details);
1(5)(xxiii)(b) | Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial v
Offlcer Head of Internal Audit and Compliance their spouses and minor
ise details);
1(5)(0i)c) Executlves, v
Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the - NA
1(5)(0i)d)
company (name wise details).
(5)0iv) | In c?se of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure on v
the ers:
1(5)xiv)a) | a brief resume of the director v
1 (5)(xxiv){b) | nature of his/her expertise in specific functional areas; e
1 (5)(xxiv)(c)| Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and v

the membership of committees of the board.
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1 ()0xxv)

A management's Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the company's position

and operations along with a brief discussion of chanaes in financial statements, among others, focusing on

1(5)(xxv)(a)

Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements;

v

1(5)0xv)(b)
(S)(xxv)(b)

Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing
the effect on financial performance or results and financial position as well
as cash flows in absolute fiqure for such changes;

NA

1(5)0xxv)(c)
(S)xxv)(c)

Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial performance or
results and financial position as well as cash flows for current financial year with
immediately precedina five years explaining reasons thereof;

AN

1(5)(xxv)(d)

compare such financial performance or results and financial position as
well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

1(5)(xxv)(e)

briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the
globe;

1(5)0xxv)(f)

risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining
such risk and concerns mitigation plan of the company; and

1(5)(xxv)(g)

future plan or projection or forecast for company's operation, performance
and financial position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be
explained to the shareholders in the next AGM:;

NENON S

1(5)(xxvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required
under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A; and

AN

1(5) (xxvii)

The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this

code as required under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per
Annexure-B and Annexure-C

AN

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the minutes of
the meetings as well as keep required books and records in line with the
provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh {ICSB) in
so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this
Code

SIS

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board Members
and Chief Executive Officer

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC),

for the Chairperson of the Board, other board members and Chief

Executive Officer of the company

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the
website of the company

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding company
shall be made applicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary
company:;

At least 1 (one) independent director of the Board of the holding company
shall be a director on the Board of the subsidiary company;

The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be placed
for review at the following Board meeting of the holding company

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall
state that they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial
statements, in particular the investments made by the subsidiary company.

Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Chief Financia
Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS)

| Officer (CFO), Head

of Internal Audit and

Appointment

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer

3@ | (cE0), a Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) v
and a Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC);
3(1)((b) The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), v

Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal

Audit and Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;
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The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold
any executive position in any other company at the same time;

The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties
of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS;

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their

position without approval of the Board as well as immediate dissemination
to the Commission and stock exchange(s).

Noted

Requirement to attend Board of Director' s Meetings

The MD or CEOQ, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the
meetings of the Board:

v

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Financial Officer (CFQ)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed financial statements for the year and that to

the best of their knowledge and belief v

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit v -
any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's v -
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and

applicable laws;

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of v -
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during

the year which are fraudulent illegal or violation of the code of conduct for

the company's Board or its member;

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the v .

Annual Report

Board of Directors Committee. For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board sh

following sub-committees:

—

Audit Committee and ;

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

The company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the
Board:;

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of Directors in ensuring that

the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the
business;

NEOSNIN SN

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of the
Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

Constitution of Audit Committee Meeting

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members;

The Board shall appoint members of the audit committee who shall benon-
executive directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the Board
and shall include at least 1(one) independent director;

AN

All members of the audit committee should be "financially literate" and at
least | (one) member shall have accounting or related financial
management background and 10(ten)years of such experience;

When the term of service of any Committee member expires or there is any
circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to hold office before
expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of the Committee
members to be lower than the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the Board
shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up the vacancy immediately or not
later than 60 (sixty) days from the date of vacancy in the Committee to ensure|
continuity of the performance of work of the Audit Committee:”

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee.

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without at
least 1 (one) independent director.

ANAN

The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be

Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who shall be an Independent director.
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In the absence of the Chairperson of the audit committee, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular
meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as
required under condition No.5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the
reqular chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

Noted

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual
General Meeting (AGM):

Meeting of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four megtings in a financial
year: Provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular meeting

may be convened at the request of any one of the members of the
Committee:

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be constituted in
presence of either two members or two third of the members of the Audit
Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an independent
director is a must

N

Rule of the Audit Committee shall:

Oversee the financial reporting process:

Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles:

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is
adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and
Compliance plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;

SN

QOversee hiring and performance of external auditors.

Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual

financial statements before submission to the Board for approval or
adoption:

SN

Review along with the management, the annual financial statements
before submission to the board for approval;

Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial
statements before submission to the board for approval;

Review the adequacy of internal audit function;

Review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in
the Annual Report;

Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the

management;
Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued
by statutory auditors

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude,
level of experise deployed and time required for effective audit and evalute
the performance of external auditors;

SENE N SN NS

Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial public Offering (IPO)
or Repeat public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share offer have brm utilized as
per the purpose stated in relevent offer document or prospectus approved
by the Commission:

N/A

Reporting of the Audit Committee

Reporting to the Board of Directors

The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board.

SN

The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board of Directors on the fol

lowing findin

report on conflicts of interests;

. No such
[ncidence arose

suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in

the internal internal audit and compliance process or in the financial
statements; control system;

NS

No such
Incidence arose

suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including
securities related laws, rules and requlations; a

\

No such
Incidence arose

any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be
disclosed to the Board immediately;

\

_ No such
Incidence arose
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Reporting to the Authorities:

If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything which has
material impact on the financial condition and results of operation and has
discussed with the Board and the management that any rectification is
necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification has been
unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall reBort such finding to the
Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the Board for three times or
completion of a period of G?Six) months from the date of first reporting to
the Board_whichever is earlier

No such
reportable

incidence arose

Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors Report on activities
carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report made to the Board
under condition 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the

Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual report of
the issuer company

Nomination and remuneration Committee (NRC).

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) as a subcommittee of the Board;

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or
policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and
independence of directors and top-level executive as well as a policy for
formal process of considering remuneration of directors, top level

executive;
The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in
writing covering the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b).

Constitution of the NRC

The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an
independent director;

At least 02 (two) members of the Committee shall be non-executive
directors;”

N

Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the
Board:

The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the
Committee:

Noted

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of

the Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the

vacancy within 180 ( one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in
the Committee;

No such case

has arisen

after formation
of NRC

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external
expert and/ or member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be
non-voting member,if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion form
such external expert and/or

member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

Noted

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee;

The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of
at least an independent director;

SN

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any
remuneration forany advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than
Director's fees or honorarium

from the company

Chairperson of the NRC

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the

Committee_who shall be an independent director:
In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members
may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting,

the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in
the minutes:

Noted

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting
(AGM) to answer the queries of the shareholders;
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Meeting of the NRC

The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year:;

The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon
request by any member of the NRC;

The quortm of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of
either two members or two third of the members of the Committee,
whichever is higher, where presence of an independent director is must as
required under condition No. 6(2)(h);

The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the

minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the
NRC

Role of the NRC

NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board
and to the shareholders;

NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report
with recommendation to the Board:

Formulating the ceiteria for determining qualifications, positive atteibutes
and independence of a director and recommend a policy to the Board,
relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive,
considering the following:

The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to

attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to run the company
Qll(‘(‘PQquJJV

The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets
appropriate performance benchmarks; and

Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
0 orking of the company and its goals;

Devising a pollcy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age,

gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality;
|dentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be

appointed in top level executive position in accordance with the ceiteria laid
down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

AN

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent
directors and the Board:

|dentifying the company's needs for employees at different levels and
determine their selection, transfer or rpnlamment and promotion criteria;

Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human
resources and trammo DOJICIBS

The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and
the evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in
its annual report.

SNESN NS

External or Statutory Auditors

The issuer shall not engage its external o statutory auditors to perform the foll

wing services

Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions:

of the company,

Financial information system design and implementation;

AN

Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or
financial statement;

Broker -dealer services;

Broker -dealer services;

Actuarial services;

Internal audit services or special audit services:

Any services that the Audit Committee determines.

Audit or certification services on compliance of corporate governance as
required under condition No.9(1);

SKNNNNDING S
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Any other service that creates conflict of interest

No Partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any
share of the company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit
assignment of that company; his or her family members also shall not hold
ant shares in the said company:

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders' Meeting (Annual General meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting) to answer the queries of the shareholders.

Maintaining a website bv the Company

The Company shall have an official website linked with the website of the
stock exchange.

The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing.

The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website
as required under the regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s}

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance

The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional
Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or
audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance of Corporate Governance
Code of the Commission and shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the
Annual Report.

The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this
Corporate Governance Code shall be appointed by the Shareholders in the
annual general meeting.

The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure
C attached, in the directors' report whether the company has complied with
these conditions or not.
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Annexure-D
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ON COMPANY’S POSITION AND OPERATION
In order to improve performances, the Management had formal & informal discussions on the affairs of the Company
with specific reference to the following: - | dgas & electricity are sufficiently and regularly available with required
pressure, raw materials are available, Gas and Dollar rate reduces and product demand increase then performance of
the company will improve, the company may re-start the production.

a) Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis foIIowingi accrual basis of accounting
except for Cash Flow Statement in accordance with the applicable International Accounting Standards an
International Financial Reporting Standards.

b) Changes in Accounting policies and Estimations

No change in accounting policies was recommended as the same were as per statuary requirement.

c) Financial performance and position of the Company:

Production and sales of the Factory could not be accelerated at desired level due to Cumulative effect of COVID 19
,Russia & Ukraine war, high Gas price and low demand of products and other events mentioned elsewhere. On the
other hand, material cost has increased and some fixed costs are ongoing even though the factory is temporary
closed .These made negative impact on profitability.

Turnover amounted to Taka 96.30 million in the year 2023-2024 as against taka 244.47 million in the year 2022-2023.
This year cost of goods sold 192.34Taka million as against 310.477 million in the year 2022-2023. The gross loss for

the year was Taka (96.04) million as against Taka (66.00) million of the previous year.

Note that detailed performance of the company is stated page no7. Comparative analysis & presentation of
comparative data are placed in the report. Inflation factor in expenses is compensated by increasing revenues.

d) Financial performance and position with peer industries:

Comparative figures for each line item are presented in reports page no-7 for better understanding of the readers.
We produce stoneware tableware products. Data relatingf to stoneware tableware of other industries are not
publicly available. Therefore exact comparison is not possible.

Comparative analysis of cash Flows

Amount in Tk. (000

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
Net cash inflow from operating activities (57,727) (58,790) (6,066) 7,741 3,623
Net Cash Out Flow from Investing Activities (430) 1,969 (1,753) (10,852) (99,892)
Net Cash out Flow from Financing Activities 22,143 90,907 6,429 4,667 50,763
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (36,014) 34,086 (1,391) 1,555 (5,507)
Net Operating Cash Flow per share (8.94) (9.10) (0.94) 1.20 0.56
%) Global and Local Economic Scenario: o _ _
he economic activities suffered adversely due to Liquidity Crisis for cumulative effect of COVID-19 , hégh gas

price, Dollar rate high and Russia — Ukraine war. As a result the Purchasing power of customers reduce

substantially.
d)Risk and mitigation

No major risk is foreseen to remain as going concern if Financial and Trade policies remain unchanged and Gas &
Electricity supply are sufficient. If the constrains referred in paragraph continues then there is a risk and mitigation

mela:y not be possible
%) uture planning

he future planning will be decided by the shareholders in the AGM considering the constrains of re-starting the

production while approving the accounts.

Financial and economic scenario of the Globe:

Since the Ceramic Industry requires 94% of Raw materials to be imported, there is an uncertainty factor of
sustainability of business and increasing capacity of international competitiveness. Further Dollar price is
increasing every year which will adversely affect sustainability of ?oip%

Further Dollar price is increasing every year which will adversely af

:’_»;9!-;-&(,@“

Aeldl UlU(JIH ll-\HHIEU
Managing Director
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Standard Ceramic Industries Limited

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
For the year ended 30 June 2024.

Under Condition No. 5 (7) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Audit Committee in Standard Ceramic Industries Limited (SCIL) is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, assists the
Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in ensuring that the financial
statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the
business. The Audit Committee be and is responsible to the Board of Directors. The jurisdiction of the Audit Committee extends
over the Company covering risk management with special emphasis on ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and
regulation.

Composition and Meetings

Mr. Aftab Uddin Ahmed FCA, Independent Director Chairman

Mrs. Anwarun Nehar, Director Member

Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan, Director Member

Mr. Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan Company Secretary

A total of 4 (Four) meetings were held during the year. Company Secretary of the Company functioned as the Secretary to
the Committee as per regulatory requirements. In addition to that the Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance attended the meetings on invitation and other officials were invited to attend the meetings as and when the
Committee required their presence.

The detail responsibilities of Audit Committee are well defined in the Terms of Reference (TOR). However, the major roles of
the Audit Committee are mentioned below:

(a) To review the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, adequacy of internal
audit function, Management’s Discussion and Analysis, statement of all related party transactions and Management
Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory auditors etc.;

(b) To oversee the financial reporting process, hiring and performance of external auditors;
(c) To monitor choice of accounting policies, principles, Internal Audit and Compliance process etc.;

The Audit Committee reports on its activities to the Board of Directors. Audit Committee also immediately reports to the Board
of Directors on

a) report on conflicts of interests,

b) suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect in the internal control system,

c) suspected infringement of laws, including securities related laws, rules and regulations,

d) any other matter which shall be disclosed to the Board of Directors.

The Committee considered the scope and methodology of the audits, as well as the independence, objectivity and
qualification of the external auditors. The Audit Committee reviewed the external audit works and concluded that the financial
reporting was satisfactory and in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles in Bangladesh and that the audit
was satisfactorily conducted. In connection with financial reporting, the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company's
financial statements. The Audit Committee concluded that all reported financial results have been presented in accordance
with applicable rules.

The audit committee has recommended the Board to appoint external auditor of the company, M/s. ARTISAN, Chartered
Accountants, Sonargaon Terrace (2" Floor), House no-52,Road no-13/C, Block no-E, Banani, Dhaka-1213
bangladesh as the statutory auditors for the year 2024-2025.

Moreover, the Audit Committee reviewed SCIL's self-assessment of Corporate Governance practices, based on a checklist
provided by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The Committee concluded that Corporate
Governance practices within SCIL to a greater extent exceeded the standards and also found few rooms to improve further
which are already on process.
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Besides these, the Audit Committee reviewed risk identification, assessment and mitigation methodologies, process and
management. The Committee concluded that risk management was satisfactory, with the formulation of highly structured and
well-defined risk categories, as well as the identification and review of the major risks affecting SCIL's flow of operations and
their impact in upcoming years.

The Audit Committee will continue to monitor the progress made by Internal Audit Division for "Risk Based Audit"
implementation by conducting random sampling of Corporate Governance and Ethics compliance issues, and ensuring the
clearance of outstanding items from previous years.

Summary of activities during the year
During the year under review the Committee, inter alia, focused on the following activities:

a) The Committee supervised the hiring and performance of external or statutory auditors including determination of their
audit fees hold meeting with them for review of annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.

b) Reviewed and recommended the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024 to the Board for approval.

c) Reviewed the Management Letter from external auditors for the year under review along with management's responses on
the findings.

d) Reviewed the Auditors' Certification on Corporate Governance compliance for the year ended 30 June 2024.

e) Reviewed and ascertained that the internal control system including financial and operational controls, accounting system,
and reporting structure are adequate and effective.

f) Reviewed the periodical reports submitted by the Internal Auditors and recommended to the management regarding proper
and prompt resolution of the irregularities/issues stated therein.

g) Reviewed the actions taken by the management for implementation of Audit Committee observations on issues
deliberated in Audit Committee reports.

h) The Committee placed its reports regularly to the Board for reviewing and monitoring the activities recommended on
internal control system, compliance with rules and regulation of the regulatory bodies.

i) The Committee reviewed relevant quarterly Financial Statements during the year under review and recommended to the
Board for their approval.

j) Based on the above review and discussion, the Audit Committee is of the view that the internal control and compliance
procedures are adequate to present a true and fair view of the activities and financial status of the Company.

k) ) The Audit Committee always assisted the Board of Directors in ensuring that the financial statements of the company

reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company.

[) The Company did not raise any money during the year 2023-2024 through Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public
Offering (RPO) and issuance of Rights Shares.

,M“’-‘**" .
Aftab Uddin Ahmed, FCA
Chairman

Audit Committee and Independent Director
Dated: 16th November, 2024
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REPORT OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)
For the year ended 30 June 2024.

Under Condition No. 6 (5)(C) of the Corporate Governance Code as adopted on 3 June 2018 by
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

NRC in Standard Ceramic Industries Limited (SCIL) is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors, The NRC
assists the Board in formulating the nomination criteria/ policy for determining the qualification, positive attributes,
experiences and independence of Directors and senior level executives as well as a policy for a formal process of
considering the remuneration of directors and senior level executives.

CONSTITUTION OF THE NRC

a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an independent director;

) All the members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors;

) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board;

) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the Committee;

e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the Committee or in any other cases
of vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in
the Committee;

() The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the
Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from
such external expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

(9) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at least an independent director;

(h) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or
consultancy role or otherwise, other than Director’s fees or honorarium from the company.

(i) The Company Secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee;

(
(b
(c
(d
(

CRITERIA FOR BOARD NOMINATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (N & R Committee) is responsible for identifying persons for initial
nomination as directors and evaluating incumbent directors for their continued services. The following are the
qualifications, positive attributes and independence criteria laid down by the N&R Committee of the Company to be
considered for nominating candidates for Board positions/re-appointment of directors:

CRITERIA FOR REMUNERATION OF BOARD MEMBERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The directors’ remuneration/honorarium for exercising their supervision and decision-making functions should be
based on the following principles:
¢ the remuneration/honorarium should be sufficient and confirm to the directors’ dedication, qualification and
responsibilities but not compromising their independent criteria;
¢ The remuneration/honorarium must be adequate to attract and retain directors with the talent and profile as
desired by the Company;
¢ The directors may be paid sitting fees for attending the Board meetings.
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CRITERIA FOR BOARD EVALUATION The NRC is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Board. The
Board shall carry out an evaluation once in a year of its work, functions, performance, as well as monitoring of
internal control over financial reporting for the preparation of external financial statements and the safeguarding of
assets. Each Director is required to complete a confidential pre-set questionnaire. The evaluation includes a review
of the administration of the Board and its committees covering their operations, agenda, reports, and information
produced for consideration, and relationship with the management.
The detail responsibilities of NRC are well defined in the Terms of Reference (ToR). However, the major roles of
the NRC are mentioned below:
1. No member of the NRC will be allowed to receive either directly or indirectly any remuneration for any advisory
or consultancy role or otherwise, other than Board Meetings attendance fees from the company.
2. The Committee shall be independent, responsible and accountable to the board and the shareholders.
3. Formulating the criteria/policy for fixing up fair remuneration for directors and senior level management which
need to be vetted and accepted by the board of Directors.
4. Obtaining the Board approval for recruiting suitable candidates to fill up the vacancies.
5. Reporting to the Board of Directors on the committee's activities and findings.

Summary of activities during the year
Composition and Meetings:

Mr. AKM Mizanur Rahman, FCA Independent Director Chairman

Mr. A.K.M Alamgir Khan , Director Member
Mrs.Anwarun Nehar, Director Member

Mr. Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan Company Secretary

One (1) meeting was held during the year. Company Secretary of the Company functioned as the Secretary to the

Committee as per regulatory requirements. In addition to that the Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and

Compliance attended the meetings on invitation and other officials were invited to attend the meetings as and when

the Committee required their presence.

During the year under review the Committee, inter alia, focused on the following activities:

a) Discussed the policy relating to the renewal of contract of top level executives.

b) Developed, recommended and reviewed the company’s annual human resource capital and

training policies as well as involvement of financial matter regarding the increment and promotion;

c) Followed the ToR of NRC as approved by the Board of Directors

d) Reviewed the recommendation of directors who shall resign by rotation, 1. Mr.Lutfur Rahman, Director, 2.Mrs.
Anwarun Nehar, Director and eligible for re-election as per provisions of Articles of Association of the company

e) Reviewed its charter to satisfy itself that they enable the committee to fulfill its responsibilities

f) Reviewed the scope and effectiveness of internal human resource functions.

g) Overseen other issues within the terms of reference of the NRC.

h) Recommended to reappoint Independent Director Md. Aftab Uddin Ahmed, FCA.

Acknowledgement
The NRC expresses their sincere thanks to the members of the Board of Directors and the management of the
Company for their outstanding support and co-operation.

Ly e

AKM Mizanur Rahman, FCA
Chairman of the NRC Committee and Independent Director
Dated: 20t October, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS’ OF
STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Qualified Opinion:

We have audited the financial statements of Standard Ceramic Industries Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the incomplete disclosure of the information described under the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the company as at 30 June 2024 and It's financial performance & its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with the International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

The understated situations indicate that several material uncertainty exists those may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, which facts have not been adequately disclosed in the Financial
Statements nevertheless the management of the company has prepared the Financial Statement of the company
on the assumption that the entity is a going concern and will continue it's business for the foreseeable future and
the entity has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of it's operation as stated
in note # 2.04:

1. Statement of Financial Position as on 30 June 2024 exhibits Current Liabilities Tk. 485,127,724, including
bank liabilities of Tk. 202,705,734, against Current Assets of Tk. 110,023,741 including Inventories of Tk.
96,848,455 which is significantly overstated. This indicates available current assets of Tk. 1.00 only
compared to current liabilities Tk. 4.41 considering the full value of inventories are realizable. This is
reflecting acute financial insolvency of the company and ultimately the company has been unable to pay
off those liabilities, which already been interrupted the supply chain of the company.

2. The company’s retained earnings has been mounted up to Tk. (349,961,114) as 30 June 2024 from Tk.
(201,231,658) as was on 30 June 2023 and Shareholders’ Equity has been dropped down to Tk.
(244,497,759) as on 30 June 2024 from Tk. (95,768,303) as was on 30 June 2023. Beside this bank
liability of Tk. Tk. 90,660,170 have been classified as Sub Standard and Bad Loss out of total amount of
bank loans Tk. 202,705,734. Moreover, the company has been unable to conclude re-negotiations or
obtain replacement financing, which has been gripped the company in distress from acute financial
catastrophe and twisted indispensable hurdles to the BMRE of the operational unit.

3. The factory of the company has been temporarily shut down from 26 January 2024, due the disconnection
of power lines, both Gas and Electricity for non-payment of overdue bills. Moreover, cost of production has
been exceeded products selling price due to the increased rate of Gas & Electricity and increasing of raw
materials cost in consequence to the significant adverse impact of foreign currency conversion to BDT, as
mentioned in the notice of shut down of the factory. In consequence of which revenue of the company has
been reduced to Tk. 96,296,422 during the year 2023-24 from Tk. 244,470,330 during the year 2022-23
which has compelled the company in suffering Net Loss before Tax Tk, 154,293,508.

33 Annual Report 2023-2024



Note # 4.00 of the financial statement shows Inventories of Tk. 96,848,455 which includes Work in Process
around 1,061 MT of Tk. 78,055,800 and Mould, Saggers, & Stores Spares of Tk. 10,609,000. Yearly
installed production capacity of the factory has been shown as 6,500 MT. During the year under audit the
company could produce 925 MT in 7 months till closure of the factory on 26 January 2024. Quantity of
Work in Process have been shown in the inventories representing more than 8 months’ equivalent
production, which expressively exaggerated in comparison with the production during this year. If we
consider 15 days’ production as work in process, it would be maximum 65 MT to 70 MT (925 MT/209 Days
x 15 Days) and the value of which be around Tk. 5,150,000. This indicates overstatement of WIP by Tk.
72,905,800, which has been under stated Net Loss of the company and overstated net assets, inventory
by the equivalent amount. During the course of our audit we were not provided with any registers and
scope to verify and confirm existence and value of those. We were not also provided with any other
appropriate documents or audit evidence to satisfy ourselves in providing our opinion and conclude that
there are no undetected material misstatements in the financial statements in this regard using alternative
approach.

Note # 3.00 of the financial statement shows Property; Plant & Equipment of Tk. 136,916,800 which
includes Land & Land Development of Tk. 30,555,601 as revalued on 29 February 1996 but impairment of
other assets carried over at WDV Tk. 106,361,199 have not been done by the company as required by
IAS-16. As such we are unable to conclude that there are no undetected material misstatements in the
financial statements in this regard.

The company has been kept provision for gratuity Tk. 30,395,351 as shown under Note # 22.00 of the
Statement of Financial Position as on 30 June 2024 against their estimated provision requirement of Tk.
60,395,351. The amount of provision short fall for gratuity Tk. 30,000,000 has been overstated both of the
Retained Earnings & Equity and overstated Current Liabilities by the equivalent amount.

Note # 17.00 showing Bank Overdraft Tk. 337,645 which includes Balance under Southeast Bank PLC
A/C No. 98 Tk. 61,222 and Rupali Bank PLC, Tongi Branch, A/C No. 1650 Tk. 276,423 as on 30 June of
the company but we have received reply only form Southeast Bank PLC confirming the balance in reply to
our confirmation letter, whereas Rupali Bank PLC have not responded to our confirmation letters.

Note # 18.00 showing Unclaimed Dividend of Tk. 8,366,759 out of Tk. 8,370,560 has not been transferred
to the Capital Market Stabilization Fund (CMSF) as directed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission’s directive no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03 dated 14 January 2021 and Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (Capital Market Stabilization Fund) Rules 2021 and Commission’s
letter no SEC/SRMIC/165-2020/Part-1/166 dated 06 July 2021 and Commission’s letter no.
SEC/SRMIC/165-2020/part-1/182 dated 9 July 2021, which has been overstated both the amount of total
assets and liabilities by the equivalent amount.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter:

1. Note # 21.00 of the Statement of Financial Position has been showing Vat Payable Tk 9,400,442 where
the company didn’t submit VAT return (Mushak 9.1) except July 2023 & August 2023 without showing
sells Qty mentioning sales revenue. Income tax assessment status have also not been disclosed in the
financial statement. The company should comply with the Income Tax and VAT rules.

2. During the course of our audit, we found that, books of accounts as required under section 181 of the
Companies Act-1994 have not been maintaining properly. Without modifying our opinion our advice to the
management is to comply with the requirements of the companies Act.

3. Note # 21.00 showing that the company has a contributory Provident Fund recognized by Tax Authority.
The employer’s contribution along with employees’ contribution are required to transfer to the Provident
Fund under the conditions of the fund recognition and Rule 250 (2) of the Bangladesh Labor Rules 2015.
The company didn't transfer the both employers and employees’ contribution totaling Tk. 26,904,017 to
the Provident Fund account rather used as a loan during the year. However, the company made provision
@ 8% interest of undisbursed amount of the contributions.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

| How our audit addresses the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of Deferred Tax Liability

The company reports net deferred tax liability to
the totaling TK. 6,310576 as at 30 June 2024.
Significant judgment is required in relation to
deferred tax liabilities as it is probable that
taxable profit will be reduced against which the
taxable profit will be reduced against which the
taxable temporary differences can be
recognized over a number of years.

See note no. 14.00 to the financial statements

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design
and tested the operational effectiveness of the company’s
key controls over the recognition and measurement of
DTLs and the assumptions used in estimating the
company’s future taxable income.

We also assessed the completeness and accuracy of the
data used for the estimations of future taxable income.
We involved tax specialties to assess key —assumptions
controls, recognition and measurement of DTL's.

Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of
disclosure against IAS 12 & Income Tax.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

How our audit addresses the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment

The Carrying value of PPE was TK 136,916,800 as at
30 June 2024. Expenditures are capitalized if they
create new assets or enhance the existing assets and
expensed if they relate to repair or maintenance of the
assets and expensed if they relate to repair or
maintenance of the assets. Classification of the
expenditures involves judgment. The useful lives of
PPE items are based on management’s estimates
regarding the period during which the assets or its
significant components will be used. The estimates are
based on historical experience and market practice and
take into consideration the physical condition of the
assets.

The valuation of PPE was identified as a key audit
matter due to the significance of this balance to the
financial statements and that there is significant
measurement uncertainty involved in this valuation.
See Note No. 3.00 to the financial statements

Our audit included the following procedure:

» We assessed whether the accounting policies in
relation to the capitalization of expenditures are in
compliance with IAS 16 and found them to be
consistent.

» We inspected a sample of invoices and L/C
documents to determine whether the classification
between capital and revenue expenditure was
appropriate.

» We evaluated whether the useful lives determined
and applied by the management were in line with
historical experience and the market practice.

» We checked whether the depreciated of PPE
items was commence timely, by comparing the
date of the reclassification from capital work in
progress to ready for use, with the date of the act
of completion of the work.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

How our audit addresses the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Revenue

Revenue of BDT 96,296,422 (BDT 244,470,330 for
the year ended June 30, 2023) is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Comprehensive
Income of Standard Ceramic Industries Limited. The
Company’s revenue recognition policies and
procedures are not complex, and revenue is
recognized at a point in time when the control of the
manufactured goods is transferred to the customer.
However, Revenue is highly material to the financial
statement users and is the primary driver of key
investor metrics such as Earnings per Share etc.
This account is also subject to some risk on
depending on single buyer and material supplier due
to the risks such as management override and bias.

Details of the Revenue Section are summarized in
Note 23 to the Financial Statements.

Our audit included the following procedure:
Understanding the process of estimating, recording
and reassessing going concern.

» Obtain an understanding of Company’s internal
controls specifically geared towards adoption of
the new accounting standard.

» Examine customer contracts to determine key
arrangements between the Customer and
Company to understand when control of the
goods manufactured transfer from Company to
Customer.

» Reviewing Invoices, Shipping Documents and
other supporting documentation to ensure
revenue recognition is occurring appropriately

» Examine Payment documentation to ensure
completion of revenue cycle is documented
appropriately.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

How our audit addresses the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Inventory

The inventory of TK 96,848,455 as at 30 June
2024 held in factory. Inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realizable value.

As a result, the management apply judgment in
determining the appropriate values for slow-
moving or obsolete items.

Since the value of inventory is significant to the
financial statements and there is significant to
the measurement uncertainty involved in this
valuation, the valuation of inventory was
significant to our audit.

See Note No. 4.00 to the financial statements.

We challenged the appropriateness of management’s
assumptions applied in calculating the value of the inventory
provisions by:

» Evaluating the design and implementation of key
inventory controls operating across the company;

» Attending in surprise inventory counts and reconciling
the count results to the inventory listings to test the
completeness of data;

» Comparing the net realizable value, obtained through a
detailed review of sales subsequent to the year- end, to
the cost price of a sample of inventories and comparison
to the associated provision to assess whether inventory
provisions are complete.

» Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning, and the level of inventory write-offs during
the year

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

How our audit addresses the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of PPE

The economic climate and levels of the
competition remain  challenging for the
company. The company has completed a
strategic review and as a result has decide to
close or curtal some of its operations.
Therefore, there is a risk that the impairment
charge may be misstated.

Determining the level of impairment involves
forecasting and discounting future cash flows and
estimation of recoverable amounts which are
inherently uncertain. This is one of the key
judgmental areas that our audit has concentrated
on.

See Note # 2.06 and 3.00 to the financial
statements.

Our audit procedure included, among others, considering
the impairment risk associated with the following different
type of assets:

» We critically assessed and checked the company’s
impairment model. The included consideration of
discounted cash flow forecast;

» We have also consideration the adequacy of the
company’s disclosures about the degree of estimation
involved in determining the amount of impairment and
the sensitivity to key assumptions involved.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the 2024 Annual Report. The Annual Report comprises of the Director's
Report, Corporate Governance Compliance Report and Management Discussion and Analysis.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and
Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and
regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the
financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so and those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation. We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant
notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, without modifying our basis for
qualified opinion as mentioned above, we also report that:

» We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof except for those
mentioned under the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” above;

» In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
except mentioned in the Matter of Emphasis as it appeared from our examination of those books;

» The statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt
with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

» The expenditures incurred were for the purpose of the Company’s business.

Date: 21 November 2024

Dhaka, Bangladesh

@

Md. Harun Or Rashid FCA (697)

Partner

ARTISAN

Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2411210697AS382098
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Standard Ceramic Industries Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2024

Amount in Taka

Particulars Notes| 5 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
Assets:
A. Non-current Assets 136,916,800 146,853,420
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 136,916,800 | | 146,853,420 |
B. Current Assets 110,023,741 177,707,674
Inventories 4 96,848,455 123,170,628
Advances, Deposits and Prepayments 5 12,079,528 16,864,392
Accounts Receivable 6 330,775 330,775
Short Term Investment 7 - 562,657
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 764,983 36,779,222
Total Assets (A+B) 246,940,541 324,561,094
Equity & Liabilities:
C. Shareholders' equity (244,497,759) (95,768,303)
Share Capital 9 64,606,500 64,606,500
Revaluation Reserve 10 25,592,345 25,592,345
General Reserve 1 614,510 614,510
Share Premium 12 14,650,000 14,650,000
Retained Earnings 13 (349,961,114) (201,231,658)
D. Non-current Liabilities 6,310,576 19,368,508
Deferred Tax 14 6,310,576 12,452,845
Long Term Loan 15 - 6,915,663
E. Current Liabilities 485,127,724 400,960,889
Cash Credit (Secured) 16 184,576,535 166,854,814
Bank Overdraft 17 337,645 4,988,146
Unclaimed Dividend Account 18 8,366,759 8,370,560
Directors & Others Loan 19 7,158,000 -
Current Portion -Long Term Loan 20 17,791,554 8,958,612
Creditors, Accrued expenses and Others 21 138,073,875 107,469,466
Other Liabilities and Provisions 22 128,823,356 104,319,291
Total Shareholders' Equity and Liabilities (C+D+E) 246,940,541 324,561,094
Net Asset Value Per Share 43 (37.84) (14.82)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. These financial statements were
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 16/11/2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

- QLY

Company Secretary
(Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan)

Chief Financial Officer
(MD. Abdur Rahim)

::;;&(MQ\

Managing Director
(Helal Uddin Ahmed)

As per our separate report of even date annexed.

21 November 2024
Dhaka,Bangladesh
DVC No: 2411210697AS 382098

@\/g

Md. Harun Or Rashid FCA (697)
Partner

ARTISAN

Chartered Accountants
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Standard Ceramic Industries Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Particulars Notes Amount in Taka
u 30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
Revenue 23 96,296,422 244,470,330
Less: Cost of Goods Sold 24 192,338,775 310,477,184
Gross Profit (96,042,353) (66,006,854)
Less: Operating Expenses 34,994,057 47,830,976
Administrative Expenses 25 31,656,004 39,318,953
Selling and Distribution Expenses 26 3,338,053 8,512,023
Operating Profit/(Loss) (131,036,410) (113,837,830)
Add: Other Income 27 73,060 2,147,241
Less: Finance Cost 28 23,330,158 11,407,088
Net Profit/(Loss) before WPPF (154,293,508) (123,097,677)
Net Profit/(Loss ) before Tax (154,293,508) (123,097,677)
Less: Income Tax Expense 5,564,052 (131,533)
Current Tax 29 (578,217) 1,466,872
Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income 30 6,142,269 1,598,405
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax (148,729,456) (122,966,144)
Earning Per Share(EPS) 38 (23.02) (19.03)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. These financial statements were approved

and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 16/11/2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

_#

Chief Financial Officer
(MD. Abdur Rahim)

21 November 2024
Dhaka,Bangladesh
DVC No: 2411210697AS 382098

0.LY.

Company Secretary
(Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan)

== o

Managing Director
(Helal Uddin Ahmed)

As per our separate report of even date annexed.

Md. Harun Or Rashid FCA (697)

Partner

ARTISAN
Chartered Accountants
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Standard Ceramic Industries Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Amount in Taka
30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023

Particulars Note

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers and others 106,346,755 292,886,624

Paid to suppliers, employees & others (139,504,679) (337,771,192)
Finance cost paid (23,330,158) (11,407,088)
Income Tax paid and/or deducted at source efc. (1,239,312) (2,498,551)
A. Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 37 (57,727,394) (58,790,207)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment etc (1,065,260) (162,300)
Other income Received 73,060 2,147,241

Short Term Investment 562,657 (16,074)
B. Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (429,543) 1,968,867

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash Credit Loan (Paid)/Received 17,721,721 98,544,411

Long Term Loan 1,917,279 (6,113,539)
Directors Loan 7,158,000 0

Dividend Paid (3,801) (1,000,009)
Bank overdraft (Paid)/Received (4,650,501) (523,457)
C. Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities 22,142,698 90,907,406

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (36,014,239) 34,086,066

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 36,779,222 2,693,156

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Year 8 764,983 36,779,222

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share 44 (8.94) (9.10)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements. These financial statements were
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 16/11/2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

& QLY

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Managing Director Director
(MD. Abdur Rahim) (Jamal Uddin Bhuiyan) (Helal Uddin Ahmed) (A.K.M Alamgir Khan)

&

Md. Harun Or Rashid FCA (697)

21 November 2024 Partner
Dhaka,Bangladesh ARTISAN
DVC No: 2411210697AS 382098 Chartered Accountants
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Standard Ceramic Industries Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Structure and Objects:

The company is a public limited company registered on 13-08-84 with authorized Share capital of Tk. 10
crores divided into 1 crore ordinary shares of Tk.10.00 each for manufacturing of Ceramic Stone wares &
Table wares. In addition to sponsors, the project was initially funded by BSB, IPDC & SABINCO. Production
started in the later part of 1993. Approval of prospectus from the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange
Commission (BSEC) had been obtained on 14th September 1996. The company was listed with Dhaka
Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited on 7th December, 1996 and on 4th
December 1996 respectively.

Nature of Business:
The company is a ceramic industry for manufacturing of ceramic stone wares and table wares for local and
foreign markets.

Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis for Preparation, Presentation and Disclosure of the Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information are made in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, International Accounting Standard (IAS) and
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS)). The Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
profit or loss have been prepared according to IAS and IFRS. "Presentation of Financial Statements” based
on accrual basis of accounting following going concern assumption under generally accepted accounting
principles and practices in Bangladesh and Statement of Cash Flows according to IAS 7.

Legal Compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information were made in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, Listing
Regulations of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and other laws and regulations applicable in
Bangladesh. On the basis of these regulations, International Accounting Standards (IASs) & International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) were applied with the applicable standards.

Accounting Estimates, Assumptions & Judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with IFRS that requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies.

Going Concern:
The Company has adequate resources to continue its operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason
going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements.

Components of the Financial Statements:

According to the International Accounting Standards (IAS) 1, the complete set of Financial Statements
includes the following components:

1. Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2024;

Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 30 June, 2024;

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June, 2024;

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June, 2024 and

Notes, comprising a summary of significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information.

RN
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2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

Recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation:

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with IAS 16
"Property, Plant & Equipment". Cost represents cost of acquisition of construction and include purchase
price and other directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working conditions for its intended use, but
do not include any capitalized borrowing cost. No. depreciation is charged on land and land development.
Depreciation on all other Property, Plant and Equipment are computed using the reducing balance method
in amount sufficient to write off depreciable assets over their estimated useful life. Expenditure for
maintenance and repairs are expenses; major replacements, renewals and betterment are capitalized.

The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are
eliminated from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss or such disposal is reflected
in operations for the year.

The annual depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

o Building & Civil Construction 7.5%
e Plant & Machinery 10%
e Deep Tube well 05%
e Electric Equipment 10%
o Other Asset 20%
e (Carand Vehicles 20%
e Tools 25%
e Furniture & Fittings 10%
o Office Equipment 15%

Depreciation is charged on Property, Plant and Equipment for full year on opening written down value and
on addition during the year from the date of use. Depreciation has been charged to cost of goods sold &
administrative expenses consistently.

Impairment of Assets

The company reviews the recoverable amount of its assets at each reporting date. If there exists any
indication that the carrying amount of assets exceeds the recoverable amount, the company recognise such
impairment loss in accordance with IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets"

Inventories:

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process. Inventories are stated
at the lower of cost or net realizable value in compliance to the requirements of IAS. Costs including an
appropriate portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses are assigned to inventories by the method
most appropriate to the particular class of inventory. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price for the inventories less all estimated cost of completion and cost necessary to make the sale.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and cash at banks of the Company. There is an
insignificant risk of change in value of the same.

Creditors & Accrued Expenses:
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2.09.1 Trade & Other Payables:
Liabilities are recorded at the amount payable for settliement in respect of goods and services received by
the Company. These include Advance against Sales, Security and Other Deposits and Other Current
Liabilities.

2.09.2 Provisions:
Necessary provision for the current assets which are seems to be doubtful of recovery are made in the
financial statements in conformity with Accounting Standards.

2.10 Employee Benefits:
The Company maintains defined contribution plan (provident fund) and Retirement benefits (Gratuity) for its
eligible permanent employees as per applicable laws and regulations.

2.10.1 Defined contribution plan (Providend fund):
The Company operates a contributory Providend fund for its eligible permanent employees. The fund is
approved by the National Board of Revenue (NBR). The fund is administered by a Board of Trustee and is
funded by contribution partly from the employee and partly from the Company as predetermined rates. The
contribution is invested separately from the Company's assets.

2.10.1 Gratuity benefits:
Gratuity benefits are incorporated when an employee is entitled to the benefits depending on the length of
services and last drawn basic salary.

211 Income Tax:

2.11.1 Current Tax:
Provision for taxation has been made as per rates prescribed in the Finance Act, 2024, the Income Tax
Law, 2023 and as per IAS 12 Income Tax.

2.11.2 Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

212 Related Party Transactions:
Company is not connected to any related party transaction except as mentioned in Note 42. Benefit of key
management personnel includes officials in the ranks of Managing Director, Operative Director, General
Manager, Deputy General Manager, Company Secretary, CFO, Manager and Deputy Manager.

213 Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:
Contingent liabilities and assets are current or possible obligations or assets, arising from past events and
whose existence is due to the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which
are not within the control of the Company. In accordance with IAS Provision, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

2.19

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue has been recognized as per IFRS 15: Revenue from contracts with customers under 05 (five) step
approach of recognizing revenue. According to the core principal of IFRS 15, the entity has recognized
revenue to depict the transfer of promise goods or service to custom in an amount that reflects the
consideration (payment) to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchanging for those goods or services.
05 (five) step approach applied are as follows:

i.  Identify the contract;
ii.  Identify the separate performance obligation;
ji. ~ Determine the transaction price;
iv.  Allocate the price to the performance obligations; and
v.  Recognize revenue.

Statements of Cash Flows:
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows and
the cash flows from operating activities have been presented under direct method.

Earnings per Share:

The Company calculates Earning per Share (EPS) in accordance with IAS 33: “Earning per Share”, which
has been shown on the face of Statement of Profit or Loss, and the computation of EPS is stated in the
note. Earnings per Share has been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Segment Reporting:
No segmental reporting is applicable for the company as required by IAS 14: “Segment Reporting” as the
company operates in a single industry segment.

Comparative:

Financial statements are presented as IAS previous year’s figures have been reclassified, re-arranged
where found necessary to provide information that is reliable and more relevant and to conform to the
current year’s presentation.

Reporting Period:
The financial statements cover one year from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024.
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Notes

Particulars

Amount in Taka

30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023

3.00

4.00

4.01

Property, Plant and Equipment: Tk. 136,916,800.

Details are as under:

Opening Balance 449,807,169 449,644,869
Addition during the year 1,065,260 162,300
Less: Adjustment made during the year (5,254,474) -
445,617,955 449,807,169
Less:Accumulated Depreciation: 308,701,155 302,953,749
Opening 302,953,750 289,029,582
Add : Charged during the year 11,001,879 13,924,167
Less: Adjustment: (5,254,474) -
Written Down Value 136,916,800 146,853,420
Details of Property, Plant and Equipment has been shown in schedule-1.
Inventories: Tk. 96,848,455
Details are as follows: 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Qtyin M.T | Value (Tk.) Qtyin M.T || Value (Tk.)
Raw Materials (4.01) 8,014,139 9,050,050
Work-in process M.T 1061 78,055,800 M.T 1099 89,811,447
Finished products M.Ton 0.40 169,516 M.T 46 6,543,200
Stores & spares , Mould & Sagger efc 10,609,000 16,246,881
Packing Materials 0 0 30,381 pcs 1,519,050
96,848,455 123,170,628

The inventories were physically verified on 30 June 2024 and certified by the management. Raw materials
have been valued at Weighted Average Cost. Work-in-process have been valued at cost of raw materials
with proportion of electricity, gas and factory overhead absorbed in production. Finished products have
been valued at cost and realizable price which is lower and spare parts have been valued at cost.
Inventories were mortgaged to Rupali Bank Ltd , Ramna Corporate Branch as security of working capital

loan.
Raw Materials Quantity: 30 June 2024 30 June 2023

Body, G.I:aze Decal Body, G:If-:ze Decal

and Auxiliary Sheet (pcs) and Auxiliary Sheet (pcs)

(M.T) (M.T)

Opening Balance 119 60,000 159 -
Add: Purchased during the year 1,344 - 3,423 247,250
Available for use 1,463 60,000 3,582 247,250
Less: Issued for Production 1,394 60,000 3,463 187,250
Closing Balance 69 - 119 60,000
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Notes Particulars Amount in Taka
30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
5.00 Advance Deposits and Pre-payment: Tk. 12,079,528.
Details are as under:
i) Advances 619,516 2,167,417
i) Security deposits 3,561,902 3,561,902
iii) Advance Income Tax 7,049,910 9,811,218
iv) Bank Margins etc 848,200 1,323,855
v) VAT - -
12,079,528 16,864,392
i) Advances: Tk. 619,516
Details are as under:
Advance against works 619,516 | | 2,167,417
619,516 2,167,417
ii) Security deposits: Tk. 3,561,902
Details are as under:
T&T Board 145,025 145,025
PDB 253,800 253,800
Bangladesh Oxygen Ltd. 8,000 8,000
Amin Mohiuddin Foundation 811,800 811,800
Titas Gas Transmission & Distribution Co. Ltd. 2,143,277 2,143,277
CDBL 200,000 200,000
3,561,902 3,561,902
iii) Advance Income Tax: Tk. 7,049,910
Details are as under:
Opening balance 9,811,218 7,312,667
Addition during the year 1,239,312 2,498,551
11,050,530 9,811,218
Adjustment Year -2021-22 Tk.25,33,748 -
Adjusment Year - 2022-23  TK. 14,66,872 (4,000,620) -
Closing Balance 7,049,910 9,811,218
iv) Bank Margins etc: Tk. 848,200
Details are as under:
L/C Margin - 475,655
Bank Guarantee Margin 848,200 848,200
848,200 1,323,855
v) VAT (Value Added Tax): Tk. 0
Opening Balance - -
Add: Cash Deposit and VAT on Raw materials etc. 13,615,923 34,525,207
13,615,923 34,525,207
Less: Adjustment on local sales | (13,615,923) | (34,525,207)|

Closing Balance (transfer to note no. 20) - -

a) The Company has no advances which may be classified as doubtful/bad.

b) No amount was due by the Directors (including Managing Director) and officers of the Company or any of
them severally or jointly with any other person.

c) No amount was due by the Associated under-taking.
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6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

Accounts Receivable: Tk. 330,775

The amount represents receivable against duty draw back.

Opening Balance
Less: Write off
Total

Short Term Investment: Tk. 0
Southeast Bank PLC - A/C No. 67015
Al Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. - A/C No. 56251

Cash & Cash Equivalents: Tk. 764,983
Details are as under:

Cash in hand

Cash at Bank

Al-Arafah Islami Bank CD A/C No-11866
Rupali Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.-1650

Rupali Bank Ltd. CD A/C No.-7662

United Commercial Bank CD A/C No. 928
Mutual Trust Bank CD A/C No0.0020210027324
City Bank Ltd. STD A/C No.31000453/7001
NCCBL A/C No. -10025

City Bank Ltd. STD A/C No.7004

City Bank Ltd. A/C No.5001

Southeast bank- A/C No. 47598

AB Bank , Principal Branch- A/C No. 201000
Rupali Bank Ltd. F/C A/C No.-95/05 (US$ 725.14)

330,775 330,775
330,775 330,775
- 562,657
- 562,657
83,850 2,371,059
3,375 4,242
23,479 33,608,991
15,419 -
29,022
96,285 102,915
5,354
23,376 24,807
478 466,611
. 4,417
457,069 11,860
56,298 155,298
764,983 36,779,222

Cash in hand has been verified and certified. Balances with Banks are confirmed by the bank certificates.

Share Capital: Tk. 64,606,500
Details are as under:

(a) Authorized Capital: Tk. 100,000,000

10,000,000 Ordinary share of Taka 10.00 each

(b) Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital:

6,460,650 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10/= each fully paid up:

1) 5,860,000 (2,930,000 ordinary shares before public issue i.e. before
4.11.1996 and 2,930,000 ordinary shares public issue i.e. 4.11.1996)

ordinary shares of Tk.10/= each fully paid up in cash.

2) 600,650 (293,000 ordinary shares in 2010 and 307,650 ordinary share
in 2011) ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid as Bonus

Shares.
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(c) The position of Shareholders as on 30th June, 2024 is as follows :

30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Description No. of No. of Shafre No. of No. of Sha.re
Share Shares holding Share Shares holding
holders in % holders in %
Sponsors and directors 6 1,824,210 28.24 8 1,970,752 30.50
Financial Instituions (Bank & Insurance 8 14,001 0.22 11 20,156 0.31
Financial Institutions (Others) 74 347,252 537 68 252,129 3.90
BSRS 1st Mutual Fund 1 1,000 0.02 1 1,000 0.02
ICB investor's Alc 188 12,800 0.19| 189 12,840 0.20
IFIC investor's Alc 10 820 0.02 10 820 0.01
ICB Mutual Fund 2 2,020 0.03 2 2,020 0.03
ICB Capital Management 3 420 0.01 3 420 0.01
ICB Unit Fund 1 13,000 0.20 1 13,000 0.20
Others Mutual Fund and Unit Fund 1 270 0.00 1 270 0.00
General Public 8,780 4,244,857 65.70 9,132 4,187,243 64.82
9,074 6,460,650 100.00 9,426 6,460,650 |  100.00
(d) The Shareholding pattern is as below :
30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Description No. of No. of Sha_re No. of No. of Sharre
Share Shares holding Share Shares holding
holders in % holders in %

Upto 500 Shares 7716 585,976 9.07| 7984 619,493 9.59
501 to 5000Shares 1230 1,575,301 24.38 | 1304 1,620,843 25.09
5001 to 10000 Shares 61 442,834 6.86 72 524,113 8.11
10001 to 20000 Shares 26 350,266 5.42 30 403,517 6.24
20001 to 30000 Shares 13 332,371 5.15 15 379,473 5.87
30001 to 40000 Shares 5 187,433 2.90 2 79,480 1.23
40001 to 50000 Shares 172,906 2.67 3 140,700 2.18
50001 to 100000 Shares 12 953,761 14.76 8 645,109 9.99
100001 to above Shares 7 1,859,802 28.79 8 2,047,922 31.70
9,074 6,460,650 100.00 9,426 6,460,650 100

(e) Preference Share:

There was no preference share issued by the company.

(f) Market Price:

The shares of the company are listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited.
Quoted market price was Tk.97.80 at Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Tk.92.60 at Chittagong Stock Exchange

Limited as on 30 June 2024.

51 Annual Report 2023-2024




Notes

Particulars

Amount in Taka

30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
10.00 Revaluation Reserve: Tk. 25,592,345
Details is as follows:
Opening Balance 25,592,345 25,592,345
25,592,345 25,592,345
Revaluation Reserve represents revaluation surplus arising out of revaluation of land & land development of
the company as of 29 Feb, 1996 by M/s. Golam Mostafa & Associates (professional valuers) following market
rate.
11.00 General Reserve: Tk. 614,510
Details are as under:
Opening Balance 614,510 614,510
614,510 614,510
12.00 Share Premium: Tk. 14,650,000
Details are as under:
Represents Share Premium 14,650,000 14,650,000
13.00 Retained Earnings: Tk. (349,961,114)
Details are as under:
Opening Balance (201,231,658) (62,460,963)
Prior year adjustment - (15,804,551)
Profit /(Loss) After Tax for the Year (148,729,456) (122,966,144)
Closing Balance (349,961,114) (201,231,658)
14.00 Deferred Tax: Tk. (6,310,576)
Details are as under:
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Note-14.01) 6,310,576 12,452,845
14.01  Deferred Tax
Book Value of Depreciated Assets 106,361,199 116,297,817
Tax Base of Depreciated Assets (44,412,968) (52,986,143)
61,948,231 63,311,674
Provision for Retirement benefits ( Gratuity ) (30,395,351) | (1,047,451)|
Net Taxable Temporary Difference 31,552,880 62,264,223
Effective Rate 20.00% 20.00%
Deferred Tax Liability at Closing 6,310,576 12,452,845
Deferred Tax Liability at Opening (12,452,845)|| (14,051,250)|
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) (6,142,269) (1,598,405)
15.00 Non Current Portion of Long Term Loan (Secured) : Tk. 0
Rupali Bank Ltd. A/c no-027, Total Term Loan 17,791,554 15,874,275
Current Portion of Long Term Loan: (17,791,554) (8,958,612)
Non Current portion of Long Term Loan: - 6,915,663
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16.00

17.00

18.00

19.00

The Term Loan has been taken for rebuilding of old Glost Kiln. The Loan is secured by land , building and
machineries of the factory as collateral security and the personal guarantee of all the Directors other than the
independent Directors. Balance of Term Loan (Secured) TK 17,791,554 has been allocated as Non Current
Portion TK 0 and Current Portion (Payable within 30 June, 2024) TK 17,791,554 which has been shown under

Note 20.

Cash Credit (secured): Tk. 184,576,535

Details are as under:

Cash Credit (Hypo) A/c no-04

Cash Credit (Pledge) A/c no-02

Business Loan A/C No- 46

Working Capital Loan under stimulus package(Covid- loan) A/C No-03

28,670,237 25,530,894
27,096,323 25,088,219
111,707,919 100,150,000
17,102,056 16,085,701
184,576,535 166,854,814

The Company is enjoying cash credit faciliies from Rupali Bank Ltd., Ramna Corporate Branch, Dhaka.
Interest charged on all credit @ 12.75% to 13.00%. All the Property, Plant and Equipment (both present and
future) furnished as collateral and floating assets and book debts (both present and future) charged out as

primary securities.

Bank Overdraft: Tk. 337,645

Details are as follows:

NCC Bank Itd, A/c no-0025

Southeast Bank Ltd,A/c no-98

City Bank Ltd,A/c no- CD-5001

AB Bank Ltd A/c no- 201000

United Commercial Bank-928

Rupali Bank Ltd, Tongi Br.A/c no- 1650
Rupali Bank Ltd, Ramna A/c no- 7662

This represents temporary overdrawn from current account

Unclaimed Dividend Account : Tk. 8,366759
Opening Balance
Less; Paid during the year

- 4,518,650
61,222 -

- 93,991
276,423 375,505
337,645 4,988,146

8,370,560 9,370,569
(3,801) (1,000,009)
8,366,759 8,370,560

The unclaimed dividend represents the dividends for which the warrants are either lying with the Shareholders
and have not been presented as yet by them to the bank for encashment or have been returned to the
Company undelivered due to change of address of those shareholders and their new address have not yet

been communicated to the Company.
Directors & Others Loan : TK 7,158,000
Opening Balance

Addition During the Year

Adjustment During the year
Total
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20.00

21.00

22.00

Current Portion- Long Term Loan : TK

Rupali Bank Ltd. A/c no-027, Total Term Loan
Non Current portion of Long Term Loan:
Current Portion of Long Term Loan:

17,791,554 15,874,275
. (6,915,663)
17,791,554 8,958,612

Balance of Term Loan ( Secured) TK 17,791,554 has been allocated as Non Current Portion TK O shown
under note 15 and Cureent Portion (Payable withing 30 June, 2024) TK 17,791,554.

Creditors, Accrued Expenses and Others: Tk. 138,073,875

Details are as under:
Directors' remuneration
Salary & EL

Gas bill

Electric bill

Artisan

Provident Fund

Vat Payable

Other payables

Other Liabilities and Provisions: Tk. 128,823,356
Details are as under:

Security money employees

Security money (Agency) and advance etc.
Provision for Income Tax

Griuity payable

Other Provisions

Income Tax finalized upto Assessment year 2020-21.
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27,965,050 18,987,500
28,364,267 32,879,407
19,782,045 12,210,411
1,257,273 812,232
225,000 225,000
34,690,270 26,904,017
9,400,442 2,144,128
16,389,528 13,306,771
138,073,875 107,469,466
1,217,045 1,072,451
95,546,112 97,232,682
578,217 4,000,621
30,395,351 1,047,451
1,086,631 966,086

128,823,356 104,319,291




Amount in Taka

Notes Particulars 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
23.00 Revenue: Tk. 96,296,422
Break-up as follows
Quantity Value Quantity Value
Net Local Sales M.T 970.60 96,296,422 M.T 2,505 244,470,330
Total 96,296,422 244,470,330
24.00 Cost of Goods Sold: Tk. 192,338,775.
Details are as under:
Materials Consumed:
Opening Stock 9,050,000 7,423,079
Purchase during the year 34,871,036 101,426,460
43,921,036 108,849,539
Less: Closing stock 8,014,139 || 9,050,000 |
35,906,897 99,799,539
Add: Opening Work-in -process 89,811,447 || 99,700,130 |
125,718,344 199,499,669
Less: Closing Work-in-process 78,055,800 | 89,811,447
. 47,662,544 109,688,222
Factory Overhead:
Wages, Salaries, Over time , EL& Gratuity 70,165,567 65,335,064
P.F Contribution. 517,119 1,060,829
Packing Materials 6,913,786 18,188,708
Power & Gas 36,145,570 68,569,107
Consumable stores 3,182,039 11,427,436
Miscellaneous factory expenses 465,625 3,491,905
Repairs & Maintenance 5,367,343 14,107,465
Depreciation 10,891,860 12,050,948
Total Overhead 133,648,909 194,231,462
181,311,453 303,919,684
Add: Opening Stock of finished goods 6,543,000 || 10,200,500 |
187,854,453 314,120,184
Less: Closing Stock of finished goods 169,516 || 6,543,000 |
187,684,937 307,577,184
Add: Opening stock of Mould & Sagger 13,394,084 || 16,294,084 |
201,079,021 323,871,268
Less: Closing stock of Mould & Sagger 8,740,246 || 13,394,084 |
192,338,775 310,477,184
Total production M.T 925 M.T 2,463

* Repairs & maintenance during the year includes all factory building Tk. 251,564/- & machinary
repairs and maintenance Tk.555,425/= and fuel & lubricant expenses eftc.Tk. . 3,771,807/~ car

running exps Tk.788,547/- respectively.
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25.00

26.00

27.00

28.00

Administrative expenses: Tk. 31,656,004

Director's Emolument
Rent, Rates & Taxes

Postage, Telegram & Telephone

Office Salaries , EL & Gratuity

P.F Contribution

Stationery

Religious & Festival Expenses
Legal & Professional and Other fees
Audit fees(VAT included)

Forms & Fees ( Note no-23.01)
Utility bill

Motor Vehicles maintenance

Petrol, Oil & Lubricant

Office Maintenance efc.

Software service charges

AGM & Other meeting Expenses etc.
Entertainment expenses
Miscellaneous expenses
Depreciation

11,175,000 13,260,000
2,362,008 502,705
120,097 231,943
13,674,890 20,032,688
152,961 200,130
122,345 254,794
30,400 342,780
149,260 447,300
258,750 258,750
719,322 405,979
350,990 321,060
51,731 88,625
203,026 237,214
24,238 -
135,000 -
684,573 598,156
644,891 250,100
686,503 13,510
110,019 1,873,219
31,656,004 39,318,953

Forms & Fees includes Various Licence fees etc, UP Tax, CDBL Annual Fees, BPLC fees,
Documentation fees, Gazipur City corporation Tax, IRC /ERC Renewal Fees, Water testing
fees,Environment Certificate fee, Association Subscription, Listing fees of DSE & CSE, Stamp &

Govt. certified Copy Fees etc.

Selling and Distribution Expenses: Tk. 3,338,053.

Details are as under:

Office Salaries

P.F. Contribution.

Conveyance

Business Promotional expenses
Transport exp.

Other Income: Tk. 73,060
Details are as under:

Intereston FDR
Land acquisition compensation

Finance cost: Tk. 23,330,158

Details are as under:
Bank interest

Bank charges efc.
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1,498,864
214,098
466,045
374,983
784,063

5,052,220
68,500
544,115
211,588
2,635,600

3,338,053 8,512,023

73,060 22,117

- 2,125,124

73,060 2,147.241
20,530,334 10,840,633
2,799,824 966,455
23,330,158 11,407,088




Amount in Taka

Not Particul
oles ariicuars 30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
29.00 Income Tax Expenses: Tk. 578,217
Details are as under:
Current year's tax (1) -* 578,217 1,466,872
578,217 1,466,872
i) Calculation of Income Tax Provision Year 2023-24
Tax payable under regular assessment :
Net Profit before tax during the year | (154,293,508)|| (123,097,677)|
Income tax provision on net Profittbefore tax @ 20% - -
Minimum tax is payable as per Income tax Law U/S 82-C :
ii) Calculation of Minimum tax :
Revenue 96,296,422 244,462,240
Add:Other income 73,060 16,529
Total Receipts 96,369,482 244,478,769
1. Minimum tax on total receipt as per income tax law @ 0.60% on
Tk. .96,369,482. 578,217 1,466,872
a) There are laws for minimun tax payable. Hence, provision for Income tax expense of the company for the
year has been determined based on the minimum tax payable by the company. Minimun tax payable by the
company is higher of the following:
i) Tumover tax at the rate of 0.60% total gross receipts U/S 82C
ii) Tax payable under regular assessment
Since minimum tax payable is higher than the tax payable under regular assessment so, we have provided
minimum tax for the year 2023-24 as income tax provision.
30.00 Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income): Tk. 6,142,269
Details are as under:
Deferred Tax Expenses/(income) (note-14.01) (6,142,269) (1,598,405)
31.00 Credit Facilities:
There was no credit facilities that has not been availed of at the date of Statement of Financial Position.
32.00 Trade Debtors Statement:
The company does not have credit sales. As such usual classification of debtors (good, bad, doubtful,
secured/unsecured etfc.) was not needed.
33.00 Aggregate amount due by Directors & Officers:

There was no such amount in the Statement of Financial Position.
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34.00

Sales - ltem-wise:

The company sales Stonewares approx. 117 different items with different shapes and different prices under
the brand name Classic Stone.

35.00 Number of employees drawing more than Tk. 3,000 & less than Tk. 3,000 per month:

36.00

371.00

38.00

The factory is labor intensive. There are permanent labors as well as daily labors. The daily labor frequently
changes and as such it is not possible to keep correct track by name to count the number annually. However
on an average the following is number of workers/employees (permanent and/or daily):

i) Workers/Employees drawings Tk. 3,000 or more per month 715 Nos.
ii) Workers & Employees drawing less than Tk. 3,000 per month nil.

Claims against the company not acknowledgement as debt:

There was no contractual claim against the company not acknowledged as debt.

Aggregate amount of contracts for capital expenditure:

There was no contract for capital expenditure on 30-06-2024.

Basic Earnings per Share (EPS): Tk. (23.02)
Basic eamings per shares has been calculated as follows:

Eamings attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders: Net Profit/(Loss) (148,729.456) (122,966,144
after tax S s

Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year 6,460,650 6,460,650
Basic Eaming per Share (EPS) (23.02) (19.03)

Basic Eamings Per Share (EPS) has become negative figure for the period as the overall economic
condition was dull for COVID-19 and Russia - Ukraine War, high cost of imported rawmaterials due to high cost
of sea transport & Dollar rate fluctuation and abnormal increase of gas price(around 155% increased) efc. have
adversely reduced sales and gross profit.  But the company had to pay full salary and all other fixed cost. As
a result, productions and sales of the factory has decreased which resulted in decreased Eaming per share of
the Company. Note that Fctory has been temporary shut down since 26 January 2024.
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As at
N Particul
otes articulars 30 June 2024 || 30 June 2023
39.00 Reconciliation of Net Operating Cash Flow:
Net Profit /(Loss) after tax (148,729,456) (122,966,144)
Depreciation 11,001,879 13,924,167
Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income ) (6,142,269) (1,598,405)
Previous year adjustment 0 (15,804,550)
Other income (73,060) (2,147,241)
4,786,550 (5,626,029)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 26,322,173 14,819,262
(Increase)/Decrease in short term Investment -
(Increase)/Decrease in Advance Deposits Prepayment 4,784,864 (942,334)
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors Accrued Expense and Others 30,604,409 31,110,637
Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities for Others Finance 24,504,065 24,814,402
86,215,511 69,801,967
Net cash inflow from operating activities (57,727,395) (58.790.206)

40.00

41.00

42.00

43.00

43.01

Exaplanation of GP (Gross Profit) reduction:

Gross Profit (GP) has become lowered for the year compared to the previous year as the overall economic
condition was dull for COVID-19 and Russia & Ukrain war. But the company had to pay full salary and all other
fixed cost. Furthermore low gas pressure of Gas supply & irregular supply of Electricity/ low voltage have been
major constant for improving production. Apart from this, price of all imported raw materials have increased (as
international shipping, freight charges and Dollar price have gone up) and local raw materials and abnormal
increase of gas price((around155% increased) have also increased but we could notincrease our products’ price
accordingly due to dull economic condition for COVID- 19 and Russia & Ukrain war efc. As a result, production
and sales of the factory have decreased which resulted in decreased GP of the company compared to the
previous year. Note that Fctory has been temporary closed since 26th of January 2024.

Board Meeting Fee:
During the year under review 6 (six) board meetings, four audit committee meetings and one NRC meeting were
held and each Director present was paid Tk. 8,000/= per meeting as Meeting Fees.

Related party transactions
a)Key management personnel compensation
Short term employee benefits (Salary and allowances etc.)

Particulars 30.06.2024 30.06.2023
Directors All managers Directors All managers

Remuneration & allowances 11,175,000 7,200,290 11,175,000 7,551,612
Bonus - - 2,085,000 840,840

11,175,000 7,200,290 13,260,000 8,392,452
Net Asset Value Per Share: Tk. (37.84)
Details are as under:
Net Asset (43.1) (244,497,759) (95,768,303)
Number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year 6,460,650 6,460,650
Net Asset Value Per Share (37.84) (14.82)

The cumulative effect of Covid -19, Russia - Ukraine War, high cost of imported raw materials adversely reduces
Sales, Gross Profit and Net profit. Beside this high cost of gas price(around155% increased) and irregular supply
and low pressure of electricity also constrain of production and sales. As a result company has incurred loss and

consequently NAVPS has deviated. Note that Fctory has been temporary closed since 26 January 2024

Net Asset: Tk. ( 244,497,759)
Details are as under:

Total assets 246,940,541 324,561,094
Less: Total liabilities 491,438,300 420,329,397
Net Asset (244.497.759) (95.768.303)
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44.00

45.00

46.00

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share: Tk. ( 8.94 ).
Details are as under:

Net cash generated from operating activities (57,727,394) (58,790,206)
Number of ordinary share outstanding during the year. 6,460,650 6,460,650
Net Operating cash flow per share (8.94) (9.10)

Net Operating Cash Flow per share has decreased as collection (advance) against sales are decreased . As a
result, collection of the factory was less compared to the preceding period, which resulted in decreased Net
Operating Cash Flow per share of the Company. Note that Fctory has been temporary closed since 26th
January 2024.

Disclosure under 1AS-10: Events after Reporting Period:
The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the Financial Statements as on 16/11/2024 Recommended
"No Dividend" for the year ended on June 30, 2024.

The following circumstances and issues which are required to disclose in the financial statements or notes thereto.
a) Temporary Shutdown of the Factory:

The company temporarily suspended factory operations from 26 January 2024 due to the post-corona financial
crisis, the current global negative situation, shortage of raw materials and closure of gas and electricity supply.
Due to which the authority has decided to temporarily close the factory as per the Board of Directors' decision
(Board Meeting held on 20.01.2024).

b) Going Concern Threat:

Though the Financial Statements have been prepared considering the entity as a going concem assuming that it
will continue it's operation for the foreseeable future and the management has neither any intention nor the
necessity to liquidate the company or curtail it's operational scale materially. But the management acknowledge
the following issues which may cast significant threat on it's Going Concern due to the following situations:

i) Financial Insolvency:

Current Liabilities: Tk. 485,127,724 including Bank Liabilities Tk. 202,705,734, directors’ Loan Tk. 7,158,000, and
Creditors, Accrued expenses Tk. 138,073,875,unclaimed dividend TK. 8,366,759 and liabilities for other finance
Tk.128,823,356. Current Assets: Tk. 110,023,741. This results in a current ratio of 1:4.41, indicating severe financial
insolvency. The company is facing significant challenges in meeting its short-term obligations, which could disrupt

its supply chain and operational continuity.
ii) Financial Performance:

Net Sales: decreased by 60.61% to Tk. 96,296,422 compared to the previous year. As a consequence of this %
of Cost of Goods Sold has increased this year to 200% of Revenue as it was 127% in the year 2022-23, due to
the higher utility expenses and raw materials cost and fixed cost burden for factory closure.

Utility Costs: Gas & Electricity Expenses decreased by Tk. 32,423,537 due to low gas pressure and limited
generator use & closure of factory operation. Production Efficiency: 62.44% dropped in production, inefficiencies
in plant and machinery led to elevated variable costs.

Net Loss After Tax: Tk. (148,729,456), resulting in a negative EPS of Tk. (23.02). This has eroded retained
earnings, which increased from Tk. (201,231,658) negative in 2022-2023 to Tk. (349,961,114) negative in 2023-
2024.

Despite of acknowledgement of the material uncertainties outlined above, the management asserts its
commitment to addressing these challenges through the following measures:

1. Financial Restructuring: Efforts are underway to renegotiate terms with creditors and secure additional financing
to alleviate liquidity constraints.

2. Operational Efficiency: Management are thinking to enhance plant and machinery performance, fuel efficient Kiln
installation, reduce wastage, and optimize production processes.

3. Cost Control: Management is prioritizing cost control measures, including energy efficiency initiatives and
supplier negotiations.

4. Market Positioning: Management are also thinking to develop and maintain competitive pricing while exploring
new revenue streams to improve profitability
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Annexure -B

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994:

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule Xl, Part Il, Para-3, Note 4 (i) and (ii)
Employees position of the company as at 30 June 2024:
Complied -Disclosed in Note No-35

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule Xl, Part I, Para 3:

Compliance status of disclosure of

P Detail
are eais Schedule X, Part Il, Para 3
3(i)(a) The turnover
3(i)b)t Commission paid to the selling agent Not Applicable
. Brokerage and discount on sales, other than the .
3()c) usual trade discount. Not Applicable
. . The value of the raw materials consumed, giving item | Complied -Disclosed in Note No-4.01 and
3(3i)(d)(i) . .
wise breakup as possible. 24
3(i)(d)(ii) The opening and closing stocks of goods produced. Complied - Disclosed in Note No-24
. In the case of trading companies, the purchase made .
Not | I
3()e) and the opening and closing stocks. otapplicable
In the case of companies rendering or supplying
3(3i)(H services, the gross income derived from services Not Applicable
rendered or supplied.
Opening and closing stocks, purchases and sales
and consumption of raw materials with value and . . .
. C lied -Disclosed in Note No-4.01 and
3(i)(9) quantity break-up for the company, which falls under omplied -Asclose 2:] ot o an
one or more categories i.e. manufacturing and/or
trading.
. In the case of other companies, the gross income .
30)h) derived under different heads. Not Applicable
Work-in-progress, which have been completed at the
3(3i)(0) commencement and at the end of the accounting Complied- Disclosed in Note No-24
period.
3(0)() Provision for depreciation, renewals or diminution in Complied -Disclosed in Schedule of

value of fixed assets.

Property, Plant & Equipment (Schedule-1)

Interest on the debenture paid or payable to the
Managing Director, Managing Agent and Manager.

Not Applicable

Charge of income tax and other taxation on profits.

Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 29 & 30

Revised for repayment of share capital and
repayment of loans

Not Applicable

Amount set aside or proposed to be set aside, to
reserve, but not including provisions made to meet
any specific liability, contingency or commitment,
know to exist at the date as at which the balance
sheet is made up.

Not Applicable

62 Annual Report 2023-2024




Amount withdrawn from above mentioned reserve

Not Applicable

Amount set aside to provisions made for meeting
specific liabilities, contingencies of commitments.

Not Applicable

Amount withdrawn from above mentioned provisions,
as no longer required.

Not Applicable

Expenditure incurred on each of the following items,
separately for each item: (i) Consumption of stores
and spare parts (i) Power and Fuel (iii) Rent (iv)
Repairs of Buildings (v) Repairs of Machinery (vi) (1)
Salaries, wages and bonus (2) Contribution to
provident and other funds (3) Workmen and staff
welfare expenses to the extent not adjusted from any
previous provision or reserve.

Complied -Disclosed in Note From 22
& 24 and in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 4:
Payment/Perquisites to Directors & Managers
Complied and Disclosed in Note- 39

Disclosure as pe

r requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 7:

Details of production capacity utilization:

Installed Actual
Particulars Capacity Production Capacity Utilization
(In MT) (In MT)
2023-2024 Annual Production capacity 6,500 925 14.23%
2022-2023 Annual Production capacity 6,500 2,463 37.89%

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 8 (C) :

Raw materials:

Total Purchase (BDT) Consumption (BDT) % of consumption of
Items total purchase
2023-24 2022-23 2023-2024 2022-23 2023-2024 | 2022-23
Raw materials 34,871,036 101,426,460 35,906,897 99,799,539 | 102.97% 98.40%
Spare parts 2,197,996 11,528,336 3,182,039 11,427,436 | 144.77% 99.12%
Packing material$ 5,394,736 18,087,558 6,913,786 18,188,708 | 128.16% | 100.56%
Total 42,463,768 131,042,354 46,002,722 129,415,683

i) The company did notincurred expenditure in foreign currencies for the period from 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024
on account of professional fees amounting .
ii) The company did not eamed any foreign exchanges for royalty, know-how, professional fees, consultancy fees

and interest;

iii) The Company has not remitted any foreign currencies on account of dividend.
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STANDARD CERAMIC INDUSTRIES LTD.
Amin Court (3rd Floor), 62-63 Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000.

PROXY FORM
OSSPSR UP PRSPPI
O et 11t being a member hereby appoint
ME IS, IMIS. .t ettt ettt anes
o] OSSPSR
as my proxy to attend and vote for me and on my behalf at the 40" Annual General Meeting of the Company to held on
December 26, 2024 at 10:30 A.M and at any adjournment thereof. As witness my hand this ...............cccccoverennee.
........... day of 2024.

(Signature of the Proxy) (Signature of the Shareholder)

Date : Holder of Share(s)

Dated :

(Signature of the witness)

RegisterFalioBoONo. | | [ [ [ T T [ T T T T T T 1 T ]

Note: A member entitles to attend and vote at the general meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead. The
proxy form, duly stamped, must be deposited at the Head Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for
holding the meeting.

SIGNATURE VERIFIED

(AUTHORISED SIGNATURE)
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BANGLADESH

Standard Ceramic Industries Ltd.
Manufacturer of Stoneware Tableware
Amin Court (3rd Floor), 62-63 Motijheel Commercial Area, Dhaka, Bangladesh
Phones: PABX (+880-2) 223381947-8, (+880-2) 223357033, Fax: (+880-2) 223381950
E-mail: info@standardceramic.net Web: www.standardceramic.net
Factory: Saydana, K.B. Bazar, Gazipur Sadar, Gazipur-1704.

QQE“ STO W,
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STANDARD CERAMIC
BANGLADESH
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